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Seamlessly Connected, Bound by Joy

Taipei life flourishes with every journey on the Metro.

The ever-expanding network weaves through the urban fabric;

guided by a forward-thinking digital mindset,

the system brings to people not just convenience but also new ways to experience city life.
From the moment one steps out of the station to the quiet glide of escalators,

every motion becomes a verse in a traveler’s unfolding story.

With Taipei Metro, all are free to roam this vibrant metropolis,

discovering a rich tapestry of experiences—each trip a joyful thread in the city’s living pulse.
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Words from the Chairman
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As Taipei Metro celebrates its 30th anniversary, we reflect on a remarkable journey that
began with the Company’s establishment, continued through the launch of operations and
network expansion, and has grown alongside ridership and urban development. Throughout
these milestones and challenges, we have remained committed to delivering safe, reliable,
and friendly transportation for the Greater Taipei area. In 2024, we once again set new
records in operational reliability and achieved high passenger satisfaction for the eighth
consecutive year. Our consistently excellent performance continues to receive strong

recognition from the public and industry alike.

Our commitment to service has never wavered. To enhance convenience and quality of
experience, Taipei Metro is advancing smart technology initiatives. In response to increased
foot traffic from the opening of the Taipei Dome, we implemented a crowd management
system at Sun Yat-Sen Memorial Hall Station. We also upgraded the Go! Taipei Metro
app, introducing innovative features and launching a membership rewards platform. This
initiative not only strengthens engagement between the Taipei Metro and its passengers
but also connects users to nearby shopping, dining, and leisure options, reinforcing our role

in the rhythm of daily urban life.
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In alignment with Taiwan’s Pathway to Net-Zero Emissions in 2050, the nation’s official roadmap
toward carbon neutrality, Taipei Metro has in recent years actively advanced a range of energy-
saving initiatives. These include optimizing operational practices to reduce energy consumption
and replacing aging equipment to improve overall efficiency. Furthermore, we have completed a
comprehensive carbon inventory, formally committing to the path toward net-zero emissions. In
parallel, we are accelerating the development and application of renewable energy. Six metro depot
rooftops have been transformed into solar photovoltaic power plants, and are now providing a steady
supply of clean, green electricity, driving us closer to our goal of “Environmental Sustainability and
Green Energy Supply.”

Since the launch of Metro 1.0, Taipei Metro has laid the foundation for urban transportation by
building a safe and reliable transit system. With the advancement of Metro 2.0, we expanded the
network, enhanced capacity, and embraced diversified business models to explore new lifestyle-
oriented services. Entering the Metro 3.0 era, we have accelerated international integration, embraced
innovative technologies, and adopted smart solutions to drive the system toward greater intelligence,
sustainability, and environmental responsibility. Through these efforts, Taipei Metro has become a

vital force in the city’s continued development.

Looking ahead to Metro 4.0, we are pursuing five mid-to-long-term strategic directions: elevating
service quality, ensuring financial sustainability, optimizing fare structures, enhancing workforce
excellence, and evolving toward a group-based management model. These strategies aim to
comprehensively elevate organizational performance and create long-term value, energizing urban vitality
and driving economic growth. Our ultimate goal is to lead Taipei’s transformation into a sustainable city

and fulfill the vision of a better future through: “A world-class metro, a wonderful Taipei.”

Chairman, Chao Shiao-lien % é«g =
EER HER " é’:'z
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In 2024, Taipei Metro reached the milestone of its 30th anniversary. Since commencement of
operations, the system has served more than 13.5 billion passengers. Operational reliability, measured
by Mean Kilometers Between Failures (MKBF), which refers to the average number of car-kilometers
traveled between incidents causing service delays of more than 5 minutes, reached 23.008 million car-
kilometers. This marks the highest level of performance since the system began operations. In 2023,
Taipei Metro ranked first among all members of the international COMET metro benchmarking group,
achieving an MKBF of 19116 million car-kilometers. Taipei Metro’s success as an indispensable part of
daily life for citizens is made possible by the dedication of our colleagues over the past 30 years, along

with the continued support of every passenger.

Safety, Quality, and Service are the core foundations of Taipei Metro. In 2024, we conducted 1,195 safety
drills to strengthen overall disaster awareness and emergency response capabilities through diverse,
scenario-based exercises. To enhance our service, we continued upgrading both hardware and software
around the Metro system. In addition to modernizing station facilities and improving Wenhu Line trains,
we completed a user-centered redesign of Taipei Main Station on the Tamsui-Xinyi Line, introduced
smart equipment, and upgraded the automatic fare collection gates across the network to deliver a
more convenient and seamless passenger experience. In our commitment to expanding public space
and enhancing urban connectivity, we promoted the development of multi-purpose buildings above
Metro stations, as well as upgrades to the entrances of Zhongshan Metro Mall as well as Xinzhongshan
Linear Park. These projects reimagine the value of stations and surrounding areas, contributing to

broader urban development.
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Employees are the cornerstone of Taipei Metro’s steady growth. In pursuit of a shared vision of happiness and
prosperity with our staff, we have continued to implement important reforms to our personnel system. These
include removing performance rating categories to allow greater staffing flexibility, introducing a paid one-day
family leave policy to support work-life balance, and expanding second specialization training and professional
development programs. Through these efforts, we aim to build a learning-oriented organization and cultivate a
versatile, professional workforce. We also achieved significant milestones in digital development. The Go! Taipei
Metro app now offers features such as digital stamp collections, Go! Map, and an integrated points system,
creating a highly interactive marketing platform that enhances user experience and reinforces member loyalty.
At the operational level, we continued to refine our Predictive Rail Operations Management Information System
(Metro PROMIS), incorporating 359 real-time alert and analytics modules to improve decision-making efficiency
and demonstrate the benefits of digital transformation.

Despite ongoing challenges such as rising electricity rates and increasing labor costs, Taipei Metro has
maintained stable fares without adjustment. Instead, we have focused on expanding commercial development
within stations, accelerating the transformation of Metro advertising through digital formats, and promoting a
membership points program that integrates commercial resources with member needs. This strategy delivers
a win-win-win model for members, partner stores, and Taipei Metro. As our operations grow more diverse, Taipei
Metro is pursuing more agile organizational structures that support diversification and group-oriented integration.
This will enable us to consolidate resources and accelerate the development of new business models that open
new chapters in our growth. Alongside maintaining high operational standards and advancing smart mobility, we
remain dedicated to a people-first philosophy. We are committed to providing not only safe and resilient transport,
but also lifestyle-oriented services grounded in green, intelligent, and sustainable principles, thus paving the way
for long-term, sustainable development.

;}- 1?
President, Huang Ching-shinn S a a
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High-quality service, inclusive of all ages.
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Vision, Mission, and Core Values
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 Taipsi Metr actively revitalizes surrounding land to optimize land utilization,
nd contribute to urban development. '
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Vision
"A world-class metro, a wonderful Taipei"

With a service philosophy of openness and innovation,
the Taipei Metro supports the City's all-round
development for better living, working, recreation, and
transportation. We integrate the local spirit to forge a

brighter urban culture.

Mission

“Providing safe, reliable, and friendly
transportation services while pursuing
sustainable development”

We are diversifying our services and fulfilling our
corporate social responsibilities upon the basis of our
core transportation services. Taipei Metro grows and
develops in tandem with our customers, communities,

employees, shareholders, and suppliers.

R ~ (e fi EE

— Vision, Mission, and Core Values

Core Values

"Integrity, teamwork, innovation,
openness, and sharing”

Integrity
Honoring our commitments, and being fair and just
to our partners and employees, creating a corporate

culture of sincerity and mutual trust.

Teamwork

Creating synergy and realizing the full potential
of each team member through full participation
and involvement, and providing proactive care and
assistance for employees for mutual growth and

support.

Innovation

Being in sync with the latest market developments
and social trends for continuous improvement and
excellence by being pragmatic, progressive, and

innovative.

Openness and sharing
Promoting openness and diversity, implementing
the vision of a sharing culture, and fostering a sense

of community for mutual prosperity between Taipei

City and Taipei Metro.

>
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Data and Figures
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Capital and Ownership Structure

IREREZTE HIESH (7T) BaLE
Shareholder Total Investment (NTS) | Percentage (%)

=15/ Taipei City Government 7,374,571,430 73.75%
2@ EB/ Ministry of Transportation and Communications 1714,285,710 17.14%
#715TIET/ New Taipei City Government 875000000 875%
FEE8 8 T kI 10 A FR/A B/ Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd. 35,714,280
I B F PSR 2R TR 5 B PR/A 5/ Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 142,860
(o)
EIEREREIRTTIRIDBRAE] / Taiwan Cooperative Bank, Ltd. 142,860 0:36%
&It EFR R =R TIRH B PR/A T/ Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. 142,860
&5t/ Total 10,000,000,000 100%

51 AAENN 1994 F7 A 27 BRI 0 RERRLEBIRATIARABR EEK LB HI DA

5 2 | AREREATRHERS 100 &1 0 BWREAFRE IR 100 &t

5 31 2000 FRELQIFE » BIFRPTS 1714% K17 > BEGITBEIEA °

Note 1: TRTC was established on July 27, 1994. Shareholding ratios were calculated according to the ratio of capital invested in the construction
of the railway network.

Note 2: The company's registered capital is NTS10 billion, and paid-up capital is NTS10 billion.

Note 3: The Taiwan Provincial Government was streamlined in 2000, with the Provincial Government transferring its 17.14% shares to the Ministry
of Transportation and Communications.

ESima (i

Taipei City Government

iBER

Ministry of Transportation and Communications
© FibTHEAT

New Taipei City Government

FEERB T RN BRAT

Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

HEEREERITRINAERAT

Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. ;‘é

GIFEEEERTRNDERAT

Taiwan Cooperative Bank, Ltd.

BIEEFEERITRMNABRAF

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
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Organizational Structure

RS RIR
Corporate Planning Division

UL EE

Station Operations Division

BERA

Supervisors 1TEE
Train Operations Division

EER

Rolling Stock Division

BRI

Operations Engineering Division

BIE

Station Engineering Division

E5g TR

Board of Infrastructure Division
Directors

TSR

Finance Division

BIRERE

Commercial Development Division

EER L ELSES BliBAIE B 32 FRER

Chairman President Vice Presidents Digital Development Division

ANERE

Human Resources Division

M= FEE BIABAEIE= i SR

President’s Vice President’s Purchasing and Warehousing Division
Senior Director Director
Office Office

TZER
Industrial Safety Division

BREXE

Recreation Business Division

E(EHBE AHEBE
Chief Secretary Public Affairs Division

Bt

Accounting Division

B

Civil Service Ethics Division

L. EEEXERE

Lifestyle Business Division

NG ferE

Audit Office

(ML 2025 £ 3 BAEBZE B %)

(Based on the organizational structure as of March 2025)
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Board of Directors

7
Title
EFER

Chairman

o2

Name

HER (B IEEARNEER)

Chao Shiao-lien (Chairman, Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation)

4

Directors

REMR (REBHHRER)

Chen Yen-po (Political Deputy Minister, Ministry of Transportation and Communications)

BREZE (RIEHER)

Chen Chi-hwa (Director, Ministry of Transportation and Communications)

EISE (Mt BARERER)

Chung Ming-shi (Commissioner, Department of Transportation, New Taipei City Government)

B89 (FEARIBALER LY R ERERHIER)
Chiou Yu-chiun (Professor, Department of Transportation and Logistics Management,
National Yang Ming Chiao Tung University)

FERS (BB AERIR R B RIZIR)
Lai Shu-fang (Associate Professor, Department of Distribution Management, Takming
University of Science and Technology)

R (ZAEPBFEALEREER)

Yu Hsiang (Commissioner, Department of Information and Tourism, Taipei City Government)

R (RIETHFAVEERR)

Hu Hsiao-lan (Commissioner, Department of Finance, Taipei City Government)

BExs (BIHHFEHERERER)

Chien Se-fang (Commissioner, Department of Urban Development, Taipei City Government)

e (BATHFEELIERRER)

Cheng De-fa (Commissioner, Department of Rapid Transit Systems, Taipei City Government)

BBk (BT E 5t R R R )

Chiu Mei-chu (Deputy Commissioner, Department of Budget, Accounting and Statistics,
Taipei City Government

e (2B RIBE B ERIE)

Yang Chin-ting (Senior Engineer, Department of Transportation, Taipei City Government)

=A(E (RILREATMBKIE)
Huang Ching-shinn (President, Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation)

BRE (BIRREATEETENER)
Chien Tsung-hung (Secretary-General, Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation)

BEZ (BIRREARGETIESTIES)
Chien Chih-an (Union Labor Director, Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation)




Organizational Structure

TR o]

Title Name

B (REHEFIZRE)

Wei Yu (Senior Executive Officer, Ministry of Transportation and Communications)

FRZ T RERELERRR)

BEZR A Lee Cheng-an (Commissioner, Department of Rapid Transit Systems, New Taipei City
Government)

FHE (BUETBRAZZRER)

Lee Ching-yi (Deputy Commissioner, Department of Personnel, Taipei City Government)

HEIHE (2IMBMEHRERIER)
Dai Chih-chi (Deputy Commissioner, Department of Legal Affairs, Taipei City Government)

Supervisors

(BRTL 2025 £ 3 BIEBBEA%E)
(Based on the list of Board Members as of March 2025)
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Management Team

71 2
Title Name
g =A15
President Huang Ching-shinn
S =]
Yang Chin-heng
HE
BIIARASIE Hung Yu-ming
Vice President EE
Jan Wen-tau
PRZR
Chen Chien-tsai
EFH
== lrndh
HAR TR Tu Tung-ming
Senior Director =
=]
Huang Jing-nan
FEME HRR
Chief Secretary Yang Tai-liang
LS
7B Cheng Sheng-tai
Director S sEfst
Chu Kun-shu
Eizk fBELE
Auditor General of Audit Office Fu Min-hsiung
KEPERRRE HALE R
Director of Corporate Planning Division Hu Cheng-lun
UL R R & PREEN
Director of Station Operations Division Chen Chung-chu
TEHERERER BEpnE
Director of Train Operations Division Tseng Chao-hui
BHWRR R AU
Director of Rolling Stock Division Yu Shih-chien
Director of Operations Engineering Division Shih Cheng-yen
B R = HE A
Director of Station Engineering Division Chao Meng-cheng
TR AERiE
Director of Infrastructure Division Hung Ming-yuan
MR ER =S
Director of Finance Division Huang Ya-fen
HRERRER R
Director of Commercial Development Division Luo Chi-lune
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— Organizational Structure
71 B
Title Name
HUERERE 51 A%
Director of Digital Development Division Hsieh Hsing-sheng
ANNERERE R FME
Director of Human Resources Division Wang Chiou-huey
HERAEERRE I8R5
Acting Director of Purchasing and Warehousing Division Ho Chin-liang
TZERER MERE
Director of Industrial Safety Division Lin Jung-hui
i = Syt REE
Director of Recreation Business Division Wu Chun-yu
RHEFERRE RS
Director of Public Affairs Division Hu Tsong-Li
BEtERERR kB
Director of Accounting Division Yao Hui-fang
EE R B &= SRAAZA
Director of Civil Service of Ethics Division Chang Pi-lan
TEEXERRE SR
Director of Lifestyle Business Division Feng Chao-hsin
(B4 2025 4F 3 BIEH& B %)
(Based on the list of active employees as of March 2025)
e
AN&gst
Workforce Statistics HEA# 6,063 A

o= 78.77% @ Bt
Male 4776 A Doctor
0o % 21.23 % o Bt
Female 1,287 A Master
@ =+
Bachelor

Current number of employees: 6,063 persons

0.07% o =X (ZR121)
Junior College /
4N Associate
12.85% @ =48
High School/
779\ Vocational School
6098% e E+
3697 A Junior High School

1915 %
1161 A

6.93 %
420 A

0.03%
2N

88 Age 1 Average : 44.51 BE Years old

® 30=MUT | 6.30% ® 31-40 %%
Under 30 382 A 31-40

® 51-60 7% 23.73% ® 61 E
51-60 1439 A Over 61

(LL 2024 £ 12 B 31 BB ASAZE)

(Based on the number of active employees as of December 31, 2024)

23.39% ® 41-50 %
1,418 A 41-50
1.37%

83 A

45.21%
2,741 A

32
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Transportation

BICHEERS 5 RG> B 0HE (IRag) ~ 3%
KIEFRAR (ALAR) ~ MLLFNIEAR (4R4R) ~ PFIFE
AR (FEAR) Retrasy (BE4R) - SEBR 131128 »
EIEEL 117 @ o

Operational Network

Taipei Metro has a total of five lines: Wenhu Line (Brown),
Tamsui-Xinyi Line (Red), Songshan-Xindian Line (Green),
Zhonghe-Xinlu Line (Orange), and Bannan Line (Blue).
The network's total operational length is 131.1 kilometers,
with 117 stations in operation.
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System Operation Stability

Taipei Metro is committed to providing safe, reliable, and
friendly transportation services, striving to create the
safest and most stable transit system for passengers.
In 2024, the system-wide operational reliability
indicator, or the MKBF (mean car-kilometers between
service-delay failures of more than S minutes) reached
23.009 million car-kilometers. This marked the highest
performance since the commencement of operations

and demonstrated consistently strong operational

performance.
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Note 1: On May 23, 2023, the operation of the Circular Line was transferred to the New Taipei Metro Corporation.
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Note 2 : Numbers in this chart are rounded to 1 decimal place, which may cause discrepancies.

O FHRES

Average Daily Ridership ©® /=8 TotalRidership @
© G4 Wenhu Line
® ZR4  Circular Line
B : F AR Unit: thousand trips
2,500
18617
17306 16568
2,000 1,645.4 15440 2049
}2:234 14545 1956
13849 1950 o
122956 :,?:g-g 12228
1,500 11404 17590 1200 102
. osga 'Oo'° 10477 ggs A
567 9883 goo, oo
8889 8663 gy5g 9021 g,
7935 7995 7835 g7 862
7342 7058 . X
1000 1056 eaa aze
500
0

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

510 BRI 2023 5 A 23 A SR HERMIEEAREE -
Note 1: On May 23, 2023, the operation of the Circular Line was transferred to the New Taipei

2! ABREHT > ARWEAASNHE - EHF 2 MEBAYUNAER -

RIS AR ~ MRLFTELR ~ PHIELR ~ IRES
Tamsui-Xinyi, Songshan-Xindian, Zhonghe-Xinlu,
& Bannan Lines

21633
2,044.0 2,097.2 1,955.1

1,965.7 20219 1837.4 18857 2082 1,800.7 19457 2,026.9
. o2ns 389

17613 18153 éoes 21 198 18349
2066 208 1678.4 17402 1920
woad 1834 1,608.9 185.8

14551 409

348 14139
1,279.2 1542
1412

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2015 2016

Metro Corporation.

Note 2 : Numbers in this chart are rounded to 1 decimal place, which may cause discrepancies.

>

38



( LILHEEAT 2024 £

Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation Annual Report —

MIFBE7k# Headways

O THIRIEHIE

Average Headway During Peak Hours

© G4 Wenhu Line O FOKEFRLR ~ IRFELR ~ PAFEAR ~ IREAR
Tamsui-Xinyi, Songshan-Xindian, Zhonghe-Xinlu,

BEQI: 4% :# Unit:minutes : seconds & Bannan Lines
08:00
7.24
07:00
6.24 0

06:00
552 544 a2
526 519 5pg
T—eo
05:00 oo
e o 45 436 435 435 44 436 426 435

e oo O
o s ®—@ O 406 401 402 401 402 402 402 402 403 403

04:00 *—o—0—0—
03:00
258 256 256 252 251 25 25 25 25 255 254
— @0 —0—0—0 0 0 0 O 224
7§1 218 215 216 27 209 209 209 208 209 209 205 204
0200 Ll | T T8 T 010010+ 0 100 gl

1986 1997 1998 1993 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

© FIIREIEIARE
Average Headway During Off-Peak Hours

© STifE Wenhu Line © KSR ~ RLIELR ~ PAINELR - RER

Tamsui-Xinyi, Songshan-Xindian, Zhonghe-Xinlu,

B{i:4:# Unit: minutes : seconds & Bannan Lines
10:00
9,01
[N
08:00
n
Ne© O o 61 em ew 617 62 618
g —& 6.07
06:00 ® o o o e
534 °5' 537 536 5g3 N\546 546 539 534 535 546 541 53 54 o cag 5py 528 530 537
o ® e o ¢ 5 506 504 501 0 0 ¢ o O O o 0 , o o o o ¢
*—@- O**.\\\ 457 451 458 451 ..
’”’""—'.,,,f”a 403 403 413 418 41 41 4B 4 412‘%‘ 422 422
04:00 Q\asa 58— O 000 0 o o
oo
02:00 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

1996 1997 1998 1993 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024



EIER
Operation Overview

Average Punctuality Rate

©® SR Wenhu Line © ZOKEER ~ MUFRELSR « RAFESR - REER

Tamsui-Xinyi, Songshan-Xindian, Zhonghe-Xinlu,
BEfI:% Unit:% & Bannan Lines

9978 99.80 99.84 74 9979
100 9o 9953 9951 9951 g4 9954 P < saer B %% ooy o074
e o P2 o “ 7 9988 ® o ¢ § 9 o

4 ® 9975 9978 9981 0973
= 9896 @ 9960 9% g95c 9961 9959
@ 99.40

9844 " gg2g

98.94 ®

98
96 96.38
94

92 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | J

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

40 e



<

BIHEEAT 2024 F)
Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation Annual Report

MEEE

Affiliated Businesses

ARES I B3t T 18

RIEAFANRARES 246 [ EEKRHE ~ 58 ~
£3E b~ BERFLZ RS REFEEEZ
REEEDN > B3RETE XHREAKEE
AEFEEK > mEREZELZHRIETR o FRREES
hUt TH (IR EEEW) s REM T
(BEFEEILERZHEUE) KFaPIH T (hE

B—F) > AL 210 F -

W EEREESR

REWNEEFEFEEIZES 29 5 > A E 4104
M~ MBI 7740 1% o BRIXKIEB AR AT BT
=4 Hﬁ% 28 F{Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁ'tﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ B

EHEERENAREIEMEEER - T2EF
Em%@% » AT 2024 FFHIBES 55 R E

% 2RMAEEHR 76 ERERE SEHE T K
URBEFESEERANE  LERTCIBMZ 2 Bk

BARES] o

Retail Shops and Metro Malls

There are currently 246 retail shops in the Taipei Metro
system which provide a variety of services ranging from
recreation, leisure, daily necessities, culture, to food and
drinks. The wide assortment of establishments meet the
diverse needs of passengers and include department
and retail stores, shops that sell cultural or recreational
goods, or specialty restaurants. In addition to these
shops, there are 210 stores located in the Zhongshan
Metro Mall (from Taipei Main Station to Shuanglian
Station), East Metro Mall (from Zhongxiao Fuxing Station
to Zhongxiao Dunhua Station), and Ximen Metro Mall
(Section 1, Zhonghua Road).

Park-and-Ride Parking Lots

A total of 29 park-and-ride parking lots have been
established throughout the Taipei Metro system, with
4,104 spaces for cars and 7,740 spaces for scooters.
Apart from Tamsui Station, which is managed directly
by TRTC, the remaining 28 parking lots are leased out to
reduce the cost of parking management equipment and
maintenance fees. In response to the growing number
of electric vehicles, Taipei Metro installed 55 new EV
charging stations in 2024, bringing the total across
the network to 76. Additionally, fire blankets have been
placed in underground and multi-level parking facilities
to strengthen safety management and emergency

response capabilities.
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Facility Relocation and Passage
Connection

To create a safer and more convenient pedestrian
environment, we continued to accept applications for
the relocation or creation of passages for facilities
adjacent to stations or equipment within stations or
Metro malls. Repositioning facilities and equipment
allow for a reduction in the number of protruding objects
present, improving the city aesthetic and providing
passageways for passengers sheltered from the
elements. Currently, there are ten projects for passage
connection to metro stations.

Merchandise Sales

To offer passengers easy access to the purchase
of Metro-themed merchandise, we have established
Metro merchandise stores at major transit stations and
stations with high tourist footfall. In 2024, we launched
limited edition co-branded products in collaboration
with Sanrio’s Hello Kitty and Disney, providing domestic
and international tourists with a wider range of souvenir

choices.
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Digital Station Advertisements

In 2024, to promote the 2050 net-zero emissions goal
and the principles of ESG sustainability, Taipei Metro
drew inspiration from Japan’s JR stations and installed
its first cylindrical flexible LED digital media wall at the
concourse level of Zhongshan Station, a major transfer
hub surrounded by a vibrant commercial district.
This new digital advertising format not only reduces
the carbon footprint associated with traditional print
advertisement installation and removal but also offers
more dynamic and diverse advertising possibilities.
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Investments in Other Businesses
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EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd.

EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd. has a issued
capital of NT$665.96 million and TRTC owns 27.49% of
shares. Core businesses of EasyCard include general
investment, and investment targets include: the
EasyCard Corporation (57.49% stake), Metro Consulting
Service Ltd. (6% stake), and Taiwan Mobile Payment
Co., Ltd. (1% stake). In 2024, net income was NT$123.25
million, providing TRTC with a recognized investment
return, on the basis of stakes owned, of NT$33.744
million.

EasyCard Corporation

EasyCard Corporation has a issued capital of NT$704.45
million. TRTC holds 10.93% shares. The company’s
main business is electronic payments with a focus on
transportation and small-value payments, providing
EasyCard and Easy Wallet members with convenient
electronic payment services. In 2024, net income was
NT$232.96 million, providing TRTC with a recognized
investment return, on the basis of stakes owned, of
NTS$25.582 million.

Metro Consulting Service Ltd.

The Metro Consulting Service has a issued capital of
NT$50 million. The TRTC owns 20% of shares. Its main
business items are management consulting, providing
talent training courses, and operations planning
services. In 2024, net income was NTS$5.12 million,
providing TRTC with a recognized investment return, on
the basis of stakes owned, of NT$1.024 million.
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Revenue

Total revenue was approximately NTS21.36 billion, net income
before tax was approximately NT$406million, and net profit

after tax was approximately NT$356 million.

Leasing Expenditures

In 2024, the total leasing expenditures TRTC paid to the Taipei
City Government (TCG) was NT$5.232 billion, amounting to a
cumulative leasing expenditure of NT$81.977 billion.

Transfer Discounts

Supporting the TCG's policy to encourage the use of public
transport, TRTC has continued to provide discounts for transfers
between the Taipei Metro and city buses. The daily number of
bi-directional transfers in 2024 was 454 thousand. Starting
from 2018, TRTC has borne all expenses for discounts stemming
from transfers from city buses to the Metro, while TCG and New
Taipei City Government (NTCG) have borne the expenses for the

discounts of transfers from the Metro to city buses. TRTC paid
a total of NT$288 million (excluding the Circular Line) in 2024,
totaling a cumulative amount of NT$20.027 billion paid.
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Note 1: On May 23, 2023, the operation of the Circular Line was transferred to the New Taipei Metro Corporation.
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Note 2 : Numbers in this chart are rounded to 1 decimal place, which may cause discrepancies.

O EFREME

Net Profit After Tax

BB : {87 Unit: NTS 100 million

25

20

10

-10

8-5¢ ” 71 72 N

/ ./‘o ’oc \
\/ '\,/ \' ./\15 —

2'1/‘ 38 o "%7 :

L | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
1996 1987 1988 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

& AIREEAR B 2001 FRGAS FEIETHA (E&ERIS F - SERESFEHER17T)

Note : TRTC has paid the TCG rental fee annually since 2001 (nominal rental fee of NTS1 per line was paid every year for the first 5 years in
operation).
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Maintenance and Optimization of Trains
and Tracks

The maintenance and effectiveness of track facilities
and equipment are crucial for the safety and comfort
of train operations. In 2024, along with the routine
replacement of high-ridership steel rails (12,059 meters),
rail frogs (17 sets), and switch/stock rails (6 sets),
projects were completed to replace conductor rails
(10,994 meters) in high ridership areas and 32 locations
(528 meters) of conductor rails along the Wenhu Line.
Repairs were also carried out on 684 steel track surface
bases and 544 meters of running surface leveling,
among other specialized maintenance tasks, to prevent
gradual degradation of the rail network and reduce

noise and vibration impacts around the metro system.

To enhance passenger safety while standing in the
train, Taipei Metro implemented a project in 2024 to
install additional handrails in the gangway areas of
301-series trains. The new handrails were designed in
reference to those used in other train models, improving
stability for passengers standing near the inter-carriage

passageways.

Upgrading Key Electromechanical
Facilities and System Equipment

To maintain and enhance the quality and safety of the
rail network, Taipei Metro completed several key facility
upgrades in 2024. These included the renewal of fire
alarm systems at selected stations along the Wenhu,
Bannan, and Zhonghe-Xinlu lines, the replacement of the
fire alarm system at Beitou Depot, and the automatic
fire suppression system at Muzha Depot. Additional
system repair and optimization projects included the
replacement of noise barriers along the Tamsui and

Wenhu lines.



B

I
B




BIGHEEAT) 2024 F1R
Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation Annual Report

o1

ZEXE R R R R EZIEE

2024 FREERMR ~ WEEHE ~ I EEKRR
B AEAEHNE 26 BB HIBENER WS
REBIESEM - RAKERREFREATRZSE
HEXEHEE > ERABAIBEBEEN IR
K BAIHEBEIER  IBASEMUGEREE &
BIERE o

BREHREZEEES

TR A REE 2023 EREEYARIEER
SIREHESONR AR T 2R HETREIBE
ERR > MUTEZEMEERBIRIE » BRT5TMR
BEZ2EHEL (EMS) ZHEEE » BiHEAERN
BB ERET ER LR R EZEBCCTVEL S
ZEE > REABEBREZE » BRERIEFHA
ERSEHRERE > BRTERZSE o

B BieEERAESRRBREETS  RE
ﬁﬁ&Lm&%H$ﬁﬁéﬂw2W4¢ﬁﬁx§
(k) Bt » BN EBEHPRRRENFRE

FRER > BREZDLAZBRENEFaERN
HEZ2ERE > WEBRTRERSR > BREATKRK
RERBICETEN - ABIEEREE  #Y
BRAFTRBRZHMKERR BHBEER
AR ERUBHREGTEEBSRL > =&
REFBRRBREE

Multi-Hazard Simulation Drills and
Security Measures

In 2024, a total of 26 multi-hazard disaster simulation
drills were conducted across the Taipei Metro system,
Maokong Gondola, Taipei Arena, and Taipei Children's
Amusement Park. These drills encompassed various
types of disasters including equipment malfunctions,
natural disasters, and security incidents involving armed
passengers. Through collaborative exercises carried
out in coordination across internal departments and
external disaster prevention and rescue units, the drills
aimed to enhance collaborative response capabilities

and teamwork among the various units.

Enhancements in Emergency Response

In response to a track intrusion incident on the Taichung
Metro in 2023, Taipei Metro further enhanced the
safety design of the Wenhu Line. Measures included
the installation of Emergency Stop Buttons (EMS)
on platforms, as well as ongoing upgrades such as
integrating control panels at station information
counters and linking EMS activation to automatic CCTV
alert pop-ups. These improvements are designed to
increase the safety of passengers on the platforms
and reduce response times for station staff in handling
emergency incidents, thereby ensuring safer train

operations.

The track-side high-risk notification and supervision
platform previously focused on the monitoring of
nearby construction projects and crane operations.
In 2024, the system was further upgraded to enhance
rainfall and flood risk management by integrating
real-time open rainfall data from the Central Weather
Administration. Rainfall levels around Metro stations are
now displayed via dashboards and map interfaces, with
automatic risk-level indicators. This provides TRTC with
visualized alerts for improved disaster preparedness
and emergency response. To further optimize reporting
management, public feedback submitted via the
platform is now automatically routed to the customer
service system for processing. This streamlines the
handling of reports from the public and strengthens the
overall risk communication and management framework
surrounding the Metro system.
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Crowd Management System at Sun Yat-Sen
Memorial Hall Station

With the official opening of the Taipei Dome driving increased
passenger traffic to nearby stations, Sun Yat-Sen Memorial Hall
Station has become a key hub for event dispersal. In response,
Taipei Metro deployed a comprehensive smart crowd management
dashboard. Built on the core technology of the Metro Transit
Information Management Expert System (Metro TIMES), the system
integrates ticketing data with big data analytics, Al algorithms,
and graphical interfaces to support real-time operations. Tools
developed for the station include an inbound passenger flow
dashboard, crowd-level display panels, and dynamic guidance light
strips. These features visualize crowd density within the station and

provide the on-site command center with actionable insights for

implementing effective crowd dispersal measures.

utcomes
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Al Smart Customer Service Upgrade:
Knowledge Base Enhanced by LLM
Technology

Artificial Intelligence (Al) has brought transformative
changes to business operations, and smart customer
service has become essential for improving service
efficiency. In 2024, TRTC integrated large language
model (LLM) technology to fully upgrade its Al-powered
customer service knowledge base. With its advanced
natural language generation capabilities, the LLM
produces grammatically correct, fluent, and user-
friendly example sentences that reflect real-life usage.
This upgrade provides more comprehensive support for
customer service representatives, significantly improving

response efficiency and customer satisfaction.

Passenger Guiding Light Bars Installed

To help passengers quickly assess crowd levels in
each train car, Taipei Metro installed passenger guiding
light bars on station platforms. These bars display green,
yellow, orange, or red based on crowd density. In 2024,
light bars were launched at five stations, bringing the total
to nine. This feature enhances the overall convenience and

passenger-friendly experience of Taipei Metro.
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Operational Outcomes

¢ Enhancements to the Go!
Taipei Metro App

To deepen its connection with passengers’daily lives, Taipei
Metro continues to introduce innovative features through the Go!
Taipei Metro app to improve user experience and build member
loyalty. The newly launched Go! Map feature integrates business
and lifestyle information near stations, offering themed maps for
dining, sightseeing, and more. This allows passengers to easily
explore nearby resources and enrich their journeys with diverse
lifestyle content. The Metro Alliance section introduces partner
transit systems in Japan, Singapore, and other friendly regions,
providing useful international travel information.

Additionally, the new Metro Points feature allows members to
view their point history, collect points through activities, and
redeem them at markets or station shops. Users can also use
Go! Map to locate where to earn and redeem points, making it
easy to find participating physical stores, market events, and
promotional offers.

© Pilot Program: Smart Cleaning Robots

Taipei Metro’s clean and bright environment is made possible
by the dedication of its cleaning personnel. To reduce manual
labor and improve operational efficiency, cleaning robots
were introduced for the first time in 2024. The pilot program
was launched at Daan Park Station, which features a large
layout and significant fluctuations in foot traffic. By combining
technology with human effort, Taipei Metro continues to provide
a clean and comfortable experience for passengers.
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Restroom Renovation at Zhongshan
Station’s Zhongshan Metro Art Gallery

To offer passengers an improved restroom experience and
enhance the quality of service in the Zhongshan Metro
Mall, Taipei Metro partnered with a leading bathroom
brand to renovate the restroom at Zhongshan Station's
Zhongshan Metro Art Gallery. The renovation introduced
high-quality bathroom fixtures, a newly designed exterior,
and multimedia screens to create a restroom space that
is “hygienic, modern, and stylish.” This upgrade ensures

a clean and pleasant experience for all visitors.
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Operational Outcomes

Optimizing Station Facilities and
Equipment

(1) Station Lighting Equipment Upgrades

In support of energy-saving initiatives and to enhance
overall station service quality, Taipei Metro completed
the replacement of a total of 31,323 LED lighting fixtures
in 2024. This included 15 stations along the Tamsui,
Zhonghe, and Xindian lines; 13 stations on the Neihu
section of the Wenhu Line; 15 stations from Taipei City
Hall Station to Yongning Station on the Bannan Line;

and the Luzhou Depot.

(2) Surveillance System Upgrades

To safeguard passenger rights and safety within the
Metro system, surveillance systems were upgraded
in 2024 at stations along the Songshan-Xindian Line,
the Xindian Depot, and Dingpu Station. The upgrades
included enhancing camera resolution and switching
to fiber-optic networks to avoid interference and

degradation, thereby improving image quality.

(3) Continued Replacement of Elevators

In 2024, a total of 24 elevators were upgraded. The new
elevators run 33% faster than the previous hydraulic
elevators, significantly reducing passenger wait times.
Beyond conserving more energy compared to the

previous year, they also optimized service quality.

Additionally, to improve accessibility and convenience
for visually impaired passengers, Taipei Metro added
bilingual (Chinese/English) voice announcements at
the middle-level platforms of seven elevator brands
equipped with three-stop configurations in 2024.
Furthermore, second sets of elevator call buttons were
added to 121 elevators across nine brands, significantly
enhancing the travel experience and safety for
passengers with visual or mobility impairments using

the Taipei Metro system.
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(4) Replacement of Electronic Multimedia
Display Systems

In line with Taipei Metro’s ESG commitments and
corporate governance enhancement goals, traditional
LED train arrival displays inside stations have been
upgraded to advanced Mini LED displays. In 2024, all
displays at Taipei Main Station on the Tamsui—Xinyi
Line were replaced. The new screens provide clearer,
more detailed, and more diverse travel information while
improving system reliability and enhancing overall

passenger service quality.

Interior Optimization of Wenhu Line VAL
256 Trains

To improve passenger flow within train cabins and
create a more accessible environment for passengers
using wheelchairs or strollers, Taipei Metro optimized
the interior layout of VAL 256 trains on the Wenhu
Line. Following a pilot involving 3 trainsets in 2023 and
incorporating passenger feedback, the redesign was
refined. In 2024, the optimization was successfully
completed across the entire 25.5-train fleet, increasing
peak-hour capacity and reducing passenger wait times.
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Operational Outcomes

Taipei Metro Redesign Project

As passenger flow grows more complex and station
spaces reach saturation, Taipei Metro continues its
Taipei Metro Redesign project in collaboration with the
Taiwan Design Research Institute (TDRI). Starting in
2024, the renovation began at the B3 concourse level
of Taipei Main Station on the Tamsui—Xinyi Line, with
completion expected by the end of 2025. The project
will improve the signage system, integrate service
and commercial spaces, enhance wayfinding clarity,
and increase traffic circulation efficiency, ultimately
creating a more user-friendly transfer environment and

people-centric station experience.

Smart Multi-Payment Services at Station
Information Counters

To improve service convenience, Taipei Metro introduced
multi-payment readers at all station information counters
across the network starting in 2023. Passengers can now
use a variety of payment methods to purchase tickets,
including credit cards, international mobile payments,
e-payment services, third-party QR code payments,
and stored-value cards. This upgrade greatly enhances
convenience by allowing passengers to travel on Taipei
Metro without needing a wallet, enabling a carefree and

seamless journey.

ALAN Station Master — the upgraded
Smart Card Enquiry Machine

The ALAN (an initialism of Advanced Local Automatic
Navigator) Station Master have been widely praised
since launch, offering services such as card information
inquiries, transaction printouts, station information, entry/
exit code adjustments, access to popular merchandise
listings, and lost-and-found support. The latest version
of the ALAN Station Master now supports integration
with Taipei Metra’s promotional point-based campaigns,
such as digital stamp collections and seasonal events
like the Taipei Dome X'mas Holiday Countdown. These
enhancements aim to increase Metro ridership and
promote the use of the Metro Points system.
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Multilingual Platform Announcements
and Signage in Japanese and Korean

In response to the growing number of international
visitors to Taiwan, Taipei Metro has continued to
enhance multilingual services across the Greater Taipei
area. In 2024, signage updates were completed at all
117 stations. To align with Japanese and Korean station
name announcements onboard trains, corresponding
platform signage was updated to include Japanese and
Korean translations. These updates were applied to key
areas such as platform columns, overhead beams, and
platform screen door route maps. This initiative ensures
a seamless wayfinding experience for international
passengers, creating a more friendly and accessible

travel environment.

Upgraded Free Charging Stations in
Metro Stations

Since 2012, Taipei Metro has provided free charging
stations at various stations, each equipped with
one 110V outlet and one Type-A USB port to meet
passengers' basic charging needs. In 2024, to further
improve service quality, all charging stations across
the network were upgraded to support fast-charging
capabilities for modern handheld devices, significantly

reducing passenger charging time.
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© Family-Friendly Train Campaigns and
Marketing Activities

(1) 2024 “Camp & Play” Themed Family-
Friendly Train

Featuring camping—a theme widely loved by families—
as its core design concept, the family-friendly train
operated along the Tamsui—Xinyi Line. The campaign
was accompanied by interactive activities such as
social media check-ins to win prizes and Facebook
giveaways. It also reinforced public awareness of the
Family Area Priority Zones, continuing to promote the
message of “Family-Friendly Metro, Love All Around”
and fostering a warm and courteous Metro culture.

(2) Weekend Family Cinema Event

This event was held at the Sunlight Hall of Daan Park
Station and featured a lively lineup including a yo-yo
performance by Guinness World Record holder Yang
Yuan-ching, a party with company mascot Jamie,
and a singalong session with Majimeow. The event
also included an English learning game zone and was
promoted through Facebook and Instagram check-
in activities to encourage family-friendly values. The
screening of the popular animated film Paw Patrol: The

Mighty Movie attracted a large turnout of young families.
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© Spring Outing with Pets Pet-Friendly Train
Event

To expand the scale of the Metros pet-friendly initiatives, Taipei
Metro joined hands with the Taipei City Public Transportation
Office and the Taipei City Animal Protection Office to co-host
the 2024 International Pet Day: Spring Outing with Pets event.
Centered around the theme of pet-friendly transportation, the
event featured a combination of pet-friendly Metro trains, dog-
friendly buses, and dog parks. On the day of the event, two
dog-friendly trains and two cat-friendly trains were added to
the Tamsui—Xinyi Line, running between Tamsui Station and
Xiangshan Station. No pre-registration was required to board.
Deputy Mayor Lin Yi-hua and search-and-rescue dogs from
the Taipei City Fire Department were invited to attend. A total
of 280 pets participated, and the post-event satisfaction
survey showed a 95.3 percent approval rate, indicating a strong
success.

After the event, Taipei Metro conducted a thorough disinfection
of the train cars using bleach solutions in accordance with
epidemic prevention standards. Seats, backrests, handrails,
poles, and partitions were meticulously wiped down, and
cleaning was reinforced for air vents, return vents, ceilings, light

covers, interior wall seams, floors, and gangways to ensure a

safe and hygienic environment for all passengers.
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Transportation during Major
Festivals and Events

Taipei Dome Officially Opens: Crowd
Management for Large-Scale Events

In 2024, the Taipei Dome hosted numerous sports
and cultural events, each drawing an average of
approximately 24,000 attendees. As Sun Yat-Sen Memorial
Hall Station is located adjacent to Taipei Dome, Taipei
Metro implemented a range of measures on event days
to manage crowds. These included deploying additional
staff to maintain order, increasing train frequency, and
dispatching empty trains after events to accommodate
departing passengers. The station also established a
permanent on-site command center, supported by a
comprehensive digital crowd monitoring system capable
of detecting real-time inbound passenger volumes during
event dispersals. This data provides critical support for on-
site commanders to implement timely crowd control and
diversion strategies. In addition, the train load monitoring
system was used to guide passengers toward less
crowded cars, maximizing train capacity and shortening
the overall dispersal time. For 14 events with attendance
exceeding 35,000 people, the average dispersal time after
each event was approximately 35 minutes, ensuring that
the public could return home safely and efficiently.
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2024 Nuit Blanche

In coordination with the 2024 Nuit Blanche Taipei,
which was held overnight around Daan Forest Park from
18:00 on November 2 to 02:00 on November 3, Taipei
Metro arranged special one-way train services from
Zhongxiao Fuxing Station — Taipei Main Station and
Daan Station — Taipei Main Station between the end of
regular service and 03:00. The trains ran at intervals of
approximately 20 minutes to accommodate eventgoers
leaving the venue. Passengers were allowed to board at
Zhongxiao Fuxing, Zhongxiao Xinsheng, Daan, and Daan
Park stations, while all other stations along the route
were exit-only. The transport mission was successfully

accomplished.

2024 Taipei Marathon

Recognized as Taiwan’s largest and most iconic
city marathon, the 2024 Taipei Marathon was held
by the Taipei City Government on December 15. To
accommodate participants, Taipei Metro services across
all lines began earlier than usual, starting at 05:00,
with headways shortened to 8 to 15 minutes. These

adjustments ensured convenient transportation access

for marathon runners and supporters alike.
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2025 New Year's Eve Event

In alignment with Taipei City Government's planned New
Year's Eve events, Taipei Metro maintained continuous
operation for 42 consecutive hours without suspension
on New Year’s Eve. The Bannan Line achieved a
minimum train headway of 2 minutes and 28 seconds,
while the Tamsui-Xinyi Line reached a minimum
headway of 3 minutes between trains. At key stations
such as Taipei City Hall Station, Sun Yat-Sen Memorial
Hall Station, and Taipei 101/World Trade Center Station,
Taipei Metro implemented non-stop measures based on
crowd conditions to enhance transportation, supported
by 2,700 additional staff members who assisted with
crowd control and management at these stations. In
addition, as New Year’s Eve fell on the weekend in 2024,
Taipei Metro strengthened services for Southeast Asian
passengers. Apart from installing multilingual signage
in four Southeast Asian languages at Taipei City Hall
Station and Taipei 101/World Trade Center Station,
Indonesian and Vietnamese volunteers were once again
invited to assist on-site as service personnel, helping
to bridge language gaps and enhance the passenger
experience. Thanks to the collaborative efforts of all
staff, Taipei Metro recorded approximately 3.13 million
passenger trips across the network between 06:00 on
December 31, 2024, and 06:00 on January 1, 2025—

setting a new post-pandemic high in ridership.

Operational Outcomes
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Personnel Recruitment and Training

In 2024, Taipei Metro conducted large-scale recruitment
for new employees across various fields, including
operations maintenance, information technology, and
marketing and planning. The Company also continued to
recruit individuals with specialized skills. Furthermore,
to enhance the development of the public transit
transportation industry and promote the accumulation
and dissemination of knowledge, Taipei Metro has
collaborated with academia and industry partners
through various workshops, training programs, visits,
and internships. These arrangements are aimed at
cultivating professional talents for the Metro system.
The Company also implements a second specialization
training system to encourage employees to engage
in interdisciplinary learning, undertake project tasks
under supervision, adopt On-the-Job Training (OJT) for
hands-on learning, emphasize work performance and
learning outcomes, assist in talent activation within the
organization, and expand career development pathways

and opportunities for employees.

The Company adheres to the spirit of talent development
with principles such as“training for use,” “training before
deployment,” “integrated training and deployment,”
and “internalization of external training.” To support
municipal policies and advance corporate objectives,
Taipei Metro employs a structured PDDRO training
cycle to systematically develop six comprehensive
categories of training. These programs are designed to
maintain core competitiveness and enhance employee
professional capabilities. In 2024, a total of 1,253
training sessions were conducted, with a cumulative
training duration of 257,864.5 hours and 52,296

participants.
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Operational Outcomes

Personnel Rotation and Promotion

To strengthen the job rotation mechanism and revitalize
talent management, Taipei Metro conducts an annual
review of position assignments and carries out rotations
according to job categories. In 2024, three rounds of
internal rotation postings were announced, resulting in
28 personnel transfers. The rotation rate for managerial
positions held for more than five years reached 6.13%.
The Company also continued to identify and rotate
employees who had held the same position and job

responsibilities within a unit for extended periods.

With regards to the promotion system, the previous
evaluation-based classification system was abolished
and replaced with a competency-based selection and
testing mechanism to more accurately assess whether
candidates meet the requirements for promotion.
This new approach prioritizes job competency as
the key evaluation criterion, enabling more effective
identification of promotion readiness. In addition, to
eliminate barriers between the former evaluation-
based and classification-based job structures, Taipei
Metro removed previous restrictions that prevented
promotion from evaluation-based positions to lower-
ranked classification positions. The new system now
allows classification-based positions to be promoted
to higher-ranking evaluation-based positions. These
changes enhance mobility and ensure that promotions
yield meaningful outcomes, such as“advancement to a

higher job grade” and “increased compensation.”
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Domestic and International Technical
Exchange

With years of accumulated experience in metro operations and
maintenance, Taipei Metro continues to build its technical service
capabilities. Through partnerships across industry, government,
and academia, as well as domestic and international technical
consultancy engagements, the Company actively fulfills its ESG
responsibilities while contributing to improved metro service

standards in partner cities.

In 2024, Taipei Metro secured multiple technical consulting
service contracts, offering comprehensive metro-related expertise
and support to industry peers in areas such as engineering
document review, automated fare collection and ticketing systems,
transportation services, information management, and maintenance
technologies. These projects not only provide additional non-
operating income but also broaden employees’ professional
exposure and strengthen the Company’s technical service capacity,
laying a solid foundation for long-term development. Additionally,
Taipei Metro hosted delegations from SMRT Trains Ltd., Singapore’s
Land Transport Authority (LTA), Malaysia’s Prasarana Malaysia
Berhad, and Korea's Airport Railroad Co., Ltd. for technical exchange
and site visits. Taipei Metro also collaborated with the Railway
Bureau of the Ministry of Transportation and Communications and
the Ministry of Justice to conduct talent cultivation programs,

sharing its extensive experience and contributing meaningfully to

railway professional education.
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STELLAR

Operational Outcomes

From March 25 to April 8, 2024, Taipei Metro conducted
ISO 45001 surveillance audit operations. The Metal
Industries Research & Development Centre conducted
comprehensive surveillance audits at each venue.
Audit results indicated no major or minor deficiencies,
confirming successful completion of the surveillance
audit. Furthermore, from October 1 to October 23, the
French Standardization Association (AFNOR) conducted
an ISO 27001 surveillance audit regarding information
security management of the Taipei Metro's Control
(Signal, Power, Environmental Control) Computer System,
Ticketing Computer System, Administrative Computer
Room, and Communication Transmission System. Results
of the surveillance audit determined the company to

have successfully passed the verification process.

To strengthen cooperation with domestic and
international metro operators, Taipei Metro actively
cultivates communication channels and collaborative
relationships with industry peers. Through strategic
alliances and sister metro agreements, the Company
continues to foster strong partnerships. As of 2024,
Taipei Metro has signed agreements with 20 metro
organizations worldwide, working together to promote
mutual development in rail technology, commercial
services, and tourism exchange. In addition, Taipei Metro
joined forces with New Taipei Metro, Taoyuan Metro,
Taichung Metro, and Kaohsiung Metro to establish the
Metro Alliance in 2023. In September 2024, the Metro
Alliance expanded its international presence by signing
a Memorandum of Understanding with Singapore’s
SMRT Corporation. This partnership focuses on four key
areas: talent exchange, sharing of technical expertise,
establishing joint procurement mechanisms, and
developing commercial collaborations. These initiatives
aim to facilitate knowledge sharing and draw upon each
other's successful experiences. Taipei Metro remains
committed to pursuing excellence alongside global rail
industry peers and aspires to become a benchmark in

world-class metro operations.
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Metro Corner

Following the launch of Metro Corners at Nanjing Fuxing Station,
Taipei Main Station (Bannan Line), and Zhongxiao Fuxing Station,
Taipei Metro expanded the concept in 2024 to Taipei Main Station
(Tamsui—Xinyi Line) and Zhongshan Station. These new locations
combine in-station dining with convenient grab-and-go shopping,
offering passengers a fresh retail experience that has been well
received by the public. Furthermore, to enhance the aesthetic
appeal of metro lifestyle spaces, the design and interior décor of
the retail hubs adopt a dark-toned palette that reflects a stylish,
urban look. This approach reinforces the distinct character of each
mini retail hub while shaping a cohesive brand image for Taipei

Metro’s self-operated businesses.

Zhongshan Metro Art Gallery
Advertising Partnership

To maximize space utilization and create commercial advertising
opportunities, Taipei Metro partnered with private-sector operators
to install a continuous digital video wall and a 280-inch LED display
along the walls of the Zhongshan Metro Art Gallery. Positioned for
visibility from both directions of pedestrian traffic, the installation

was completed and began broadcasting advertisements in 2024.
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Operational Outcomes

© Innovative Station Experiences and Non-
Fare Revenue Growth

In 2024, Taipei Metro introduced personalized EasyCard
vending machines at several stations, including
Zhongshan Metro Mall, East Metro Mall, Nanjing
Fuxing Station, and Ximen Station. Passengers can
use the machines to print their own photos onto
EasyCards, creating personalized souvenirs. The
initiative has gained strong popularity among younger
passengers and has effectively increased non-fare
revenue. Additionally, idle space at Ximen Station was
transformed into an experimental commercial zone in
collaboration with private partners. The space features
smart culinary machines, including two unmanned self-
service ramen machines and one beverage dispenser,
pioneering an experimental zone for next-generation
commercial models. The space was further enhanced
with artist-designed murals and Japanese-inspired
décor, including a red torii gate. Combined with newly
added tables and chairs, the area was reimagined as
an unmanned dining zone, capturing the attention of
passersby and boosting foot traffic and commercial

energy within the station.
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© Self-Service Table Tennis Facility at Taipei
Nangang Exhibition Center Station

To promote regular exercise and create a vibrant, modern
sports environment, Taipei Metro established its second
self-service table tennis facility at Taipei Nangang
Exhibition Center Station, following the successful
operation of the first location at Bangiao Station. The
new facility, located at the eastern gateway of the city,
officially opened on November 11, 2024, providing citizens
with more diverse recreational options. In addition to
revitalizing underutilized station space and improving
venue efficiency, this initiative supports the Taipei City
Government’s City of Sports policy. It aims to inspire a
citywide fitness culture and contribute to the vision of

building a healthy and energetic Taipei.
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Operational Outcomes

Metro-Themed Markets

In 2024, a total of 119 themed market events were held
in plazas near Taipei Metro stations. To further energize
the commercial activity around Xinzhongshan Linear
Park, Taipei Metro hosted seasonal and themed markets
showcasing Lunar New Year, Low-Sugar Lifestyle
Festival, and Halloween. These events featured limited-
edition gourmet food, food trucks, creative goods,
fashion, and curated accessories. By integrating the
Taipei Metro membership points program, participating
vendors accepted point redemptions, encouraging
customer engagement and stimulating growth in the

surrounding commercial districts.

Cross-Industry Collaborations with
Popular IPs

Taipei Metro collaborated with globally recognized IPs
such as Sanrio and Disney to launch limited-edition co-
branded merchandise and themed train wrap campaigns.
The Metro shops at Nanjing Fuxing and Zhongxiao Fuxing
Stations were also renovated into Sanrio-themed stores.
In a first-of-its-kind collaboration, Mickey and Friends
“stepped into the real world” with the global debut of the
Keep It Real campaign, which transformed Xinzhongshan
Linear Park into a vibrant space featuring 11 eye-catching
photo spots and a themed market.
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Recreation and Leisure Businesses

¢ Maokong Gondola

(1) Operation Overview

In 2024, the Maokong Gondola recorded a total
annual ridership of 1,894,405 passengers, with an
average daily ridership of 6,232 (4,539 on weekdays
and 9,175 on holidays). Compared to the 2023 total
of 2,152,146 passengers, this represented a decrease
of approximately 258,000, or 11.9%. The decline was
primarily attributed to a significant 42.8 percent year-
on-year increase in outbound travel by Taiwanese
citizens in 2024, as well as frequent natural events
such as earthquakes, typhoons, and lightning, which
adversely affected travel sentiment.

The average system availability rate in 2024 was
99.79%, maintaining high availability. Additionally,
the passenger satisfaction survey showed an overall

satisfaction rate of 97.7%.
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Operational Outcomes

(2) Major Tasks

® Maokong Gondola New Year’s Eve
Countdown Party

To celebrate New Year’s Eve, the Maokong Gondola
extended its operating hours until 02:00 and launched
exclusive private cabins for viewing the Taipei 101
fireworks display. For the first time, the rooftop of
Maokong Station was opened to the public as a fireworks
viewing area. A New Year’s Eve concert was also held
in the gondola car storage area, while a live camera at
Maokong Station provided a live stream of the Taipei 101
fireworks for those unable to attend in person. Tickets for
the event sold out immediately, drawing significant public
attention, boosting the visibility of the Maokong area,

and increasing brand exposure for the gondola system.

(3) Diverse Marketing Activities

To encourage deeper exploration of the Maokong region,
Taipei Metro launched the Maokong Gondola Discovery
Combo package for the first time in collaboration with
eight local businesses. A total of 4,369 combo passes
were sold in 2024. In partnership with Fullon Hotel, a
Kids’Metro Staff Experience program was introduced,
offering participants the chance to experience platform
and fare gate duties, as well as ride in a special
maintenance gondola. Targeted at families through
hotel channels, the program hosted 17 sessions with a
total of 859 participants. The Maokong Gondola also
launched one-day ticket promotions during major
holidays, including Children’s Day and the Mid-Autumn
Festival, and during the Satoyama Taipei event period.
These promotions successfully encouraged visitors to

explore the greater Maokong area in greater depth.
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Taipei Arena
(1) Operation Overview

® Main Hall

In 2024, the Main Hall had a utilization rate of 92.1% (337
days out of 366 days), representing a slight decrease
of 0.5% compared to 92.6% (338 days out of 365 days)
in 2023. The number of users at the Main Hall reached
755,969 in 2024, a decline of approximately 21.5% from
918,369 in 2023. The overall satisfaction rate of vendors
in 2024 for the Main Hall was 100%, indicating the
organizers' recognition of the venue.

® |celand

In 2024, Ice Land recorded a total of 380,053 visitors,
representing a 12.8% decrease compared to 435,785 in
2023. This decline was primarily due to rising domestic
travel costs and a shift in travel preferences among
Taiwanese citizens toward international destinations,
resulting in reduced spending on domestic leisure
activities. The overall satisfaction rate in 2024 was
90.8%, indicating visitors' affirmation of the overall

service quality of Ice Land.
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Operational Outcomes
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(2) Major Tasks

® Activation of Taipei Arena Venue Space

Leveraging its central location and high event foot
traffic, Taipei Metro continued to optimize the use of
available dates at Taipei Arena by collaborating with
the Fubon Charity Foundation and the Elementary
School Sport Association to host the Step onto the
Arena: Dare to Dream program. The initiative featured
a series of experiences, including a basketball camp
at Taipei Arena, a guided Taipei Metro tour, visits to
Taipei Children’s Amusement Park and the Maokong
Gondola, and attendance at the University Basketball
Association (UBA) games. The program aimed to inspire
children to bravely pursue their dreams, while fulfilling
the Company’s corporate social responsibility.
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® Recycling of Flowers at Taipei Arena
Concerts

In support of environmental sustainability, Taipei
Metro continued promoting the Concert Flower Reuse
initiative, serving as a matchmaking platform between
concert organizers and public welfare organizations. In
2024, flowers from 21 concerts were repurposed, with 501
floral arrangements donated to social service institutions.
These included 15 adult day-care centers, one hospital, five
dementia and cancer care facilities, and three public school
art programs. This initiative not only extended the life of floral
decorations but also enhanced Taipei Metra’s corporate

image through meaningful community engagement.

(3) Diverse Marketing Activities

In 2024, a variety of skating promotions were launched,
including themed marketing events such as Kids'
Skating Fun, Art on Ice, Trick or Treat on Ice, Let’s Skate

for Charity, and Snowy X’mas Fun.
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Operational Outcomes

Taipei Children's Amusement Park

(1) Operation Overview

In 2024, the total number of visitors reached 1,977,642,
a slight decrease of 3,476 from 1,981,118 in 2023,
representing a 0.18% drop. The average daily attendance
was 6,066 visitors (3,992 on regular days, 9,924 on
holidays), and the amusement rides were enjoyed a
total of 6,047,741 times, with innovative experiences
and promotional activities drawing a diverse range of
visitors. The customer satisfaction survey for Taipei
Children's Amusement Park in 2024 showed an overall

satisfaction rate of 96.1%.

(2) Major Tasks

® Expansion of Diverse Shops in the Park

To enhance the park’s appeal, Taipei Metro publicly
solicited proposals for the planning and operation
of new commercial brands, successfully introducing
virtual XR digital entertainment. With immersive fantasy
experiences that blend the virtual and physical worlds,
visitors—whether playing solo, competing with others, or

engaging in group battles—enjoyed an unprecedented

sensory and visual adventure.
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® Collaboration with Vendors to Beautify
Recreational Facilities

Additionally, by incorporating brand IP elements to
enrich attraction diversity, several rides were upgraded
and rebranded, including the Orbiterra Galaxy Express,
ACE Ferris Wheel, and Spinning Tea Cups. These
enhancements, made possible through resource-sharing
collaborations, were further promoted with seasonal
holiday-themed events and social media marketing,
significantly boosting park visibility and offering guests

a renewed and diversified amusement experience.

(3) Diverse Marketing Activities

® Promotion of Corporate Venue Rentals

TRTC has actively promoted venue rental activities with
a range of customized and diverse services to streamline
administrative processes, successfully establishing an
ecosystem for private venue rental events. In 2024, a
total of 63 events were held, including corporate family
days, product launches, brand promotions, wedding
parties, and year-end banquets.

® Themed Promotional Activities

To capture the attention of visitors, Taipei Children's
Amusement Park launches new and exciting themed
events every year, showcasing the park’s diversity
and vibrancy. Highlights in 2024 included Children's
Month, which featured a fireworks show and attracted
84,000 visitors; a Dragon Boat Festival Baby Sports
Day with activities such as baby crawling with dragon
hats, giant rice dumpling races, and land-based dragon
boat competitions; and the summer Paw Patrol Summer
Fun Fest, where fans could meet movie characters
up close—drawing a total of 207,000 enthusiastic

attendees and bringing a joyful energy to the season.
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Operational O

Property Development

In addition to core transportation and related business
development initiatives, Taipei Metro actively revitalizes
land surrounding its stations. By leveraging transportation
advantages, the Company aims to enhance land use
efficiency and optimize public facility allocation, thereby
reimagining the spatial function and value of station-
adjacent areas to drive urban development.

The Shilin Station Multi-Purpose Building Development
Project, located near tourist attractions such as Chiang
Kai-shek Shilin Residence and Shilin Night Market, benefits
from its proximity to the future Circular Line and Tamsui-
Xinyi Line interchange, providing excellent transportation
advantages. Project plans include the development of a
tourist hotel, scenic restaurants, and commercial space,
with a skybridge directly linking the complex to Shilin
Station. Completion is scheduled for 2025.

The Jiantan Station Multi-Purpose Building Development
Project will feature a mixed-use commercial and office
complex with 16 floors above ground and 3 basement
levels, totaling approximately 36,000 square meters in
floor area. The development plan includes office spaces,
retail spaces, dining establishments, a conference
center, and a childcare center. At ground level, the
project will incorporate open public areas such as
the Lewu Plaza and Leisure Plaza, offering spaces for
relaxation and a variety of public events. Completion is
scheduled for 2028.

The Jiannan Road Station Multi-Purpose Building
Development Project will comprise a mixed-use complex
with 22 floors above ground and 2 basement levels,
totaling approximately 43,000 square meters in floor
area. The building will feature office spaces, retail areas,
scenic restaurants, a district community center, and a
childcare center. To accommodate public leisure needs,
the ground level will include open spaces and a green
corridor, creating a vibrant plaza and areas for weekend
markets. Upon completion, the development is expected
to become a landmark commercial complex in the Dazhi

area. Completion is scheduled for 2029.

utcomes }
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Through the management of its official social media

platforms, Taipei Metro regularly shares exclusive and
engaging themed posts and video content. On Facebook,
the Company promotes policies, shares fun facts about
the Metro system, advertises events and merchandise,
and interacts with fans by tapping into trending
topics. Furthermore, in 2024, new content highlighting
employee recognition and awards was introduced to
foster a sense of pride among staff. On YouTube, original
programs such as METRO FUN, Metro Unboxing Videos,
Fun Facts, and White Noise series, along with short-
form videos, attract a diverse audience and deepen
public understanding of Taipei Metro. Instagram features
content on event promotions, metro-related terminology,
and visually appealing snapshots of the Metro system.
By creating fun and easy-to-digest content across
social media channels, Taipei Metro has successfully
delivered informative content in a lively manner while

strengthening its brand image.

Taipei Metro Reaches 13.5 Billion
Ridership Milestone

Taipei Metro reached a milestone of 13.5 billion
cumulative riders and celebrated the achievement with
the theme “A Better Life, Together We Ride.” On June
28, 2024, a 13.5 Billion Ridership Celebration press
event was held at Zhongshan Station along with an
online prediction activity to thank loyal passengers and

encourage continued ridership.
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Inno Idea Startup Proposal Competition
— Taipei Metro Cup

To enhance its capabilities in smart transportation
services and diversified business development, Taipei
Metro launched its first proposal competition focused on
the Metro system. Themed around Smart Transportation
Services, Innovative Business Models, and Al Applications,
the event invited startup talent from all sectors to submit
their ideas. A total of 221 teams submitted entries for this
event, with 10 outstanding teams selected to advance to
the finals held on October 19.
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On Track JCHER L 1RER On Track: Taipei Metro Jazz Express
wrE (LR ML | SEF B S & > IR In response to the Department of Cultural Affairs

=1t SR e R BT A TRENDY TAIPEI initiative, Taipei Metro hosted the
&36-On Track = SRS LY PE=8 TRENDY TAIPEI-On Track: Taipei Metro Jazz Express

A 25 Bk B T EERAPIHERKE 9 H 6 series of events. Highlights included a jazz train on the

BE7EXKEEEGEETIBEZ% E=, 108 Bannan Line and a swing party at Ximen on August
B 16 HZE 9 B 8 B HEN /K ES45 =1 AL 25, jazz performances on the Tamsui-Xinyi Line on
=

September 6 and 7, and a jazz-themed arrival music

Lo FiBE—RYINDHEIL 1 JES > altiEER

program from August 16 to September 8. Through

ﬁir;ﬁlﬁ}ﬁ@]éfﬁéﬁﬁﬁ): g %Eggiéﬁ;ﬁfé% these TRENDY TAIPEI events, Taipei Metro and the
BRHNRET R » BRXCEMEETREMR o city government worked together to support the

development of the arts industry, transforming the

Metro into not only a convenient mode of transportation

but also a cultural hub.
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Operational Outcomes

2024 Metro Street Dance Competition

Held under the theme “Leap into Your Dream, Dance
the 2024 Metro Street Dance
Competition was promoted by brand ambassador
ENERGY and attracted 132 teams and 748 participants.

on the Big Stage,”

The finals took place on August 24 at the Beitou Resort,
featuring thrilling performances by contestants. For
the first time, the competition incorporated a ticketed
concert format, with performances by ENERGY and other
renowned singers from the hip-hop and dance music
scenes. All tickets were sold out on the day of release.
This year also marked the debut of a live commentary
desk, where professional breakdance coaches offered
expert insights on scoring criteria, viewing tips, dance
styles, and street culture. In addition, international
dancers from Japan were invited as guest performers
and judges, providing valuable opportunities for

exchange between local and international talents.
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2024 Exit Music Festival

This year’s event commenced on December 7 at
Xinzhongshan Jazz Square. Themed “Sing Your Heart
Out, Let Youth Shine On,” the 2024 Exit Music Festival
featured four popular bands, including Accusefive,
performing back-to-back. The festivities were enhanced
by a semi-pedestrianized Xinzhongshan area, a themed
market in the linear park, and a special Metro Points
giveaway campaign that allowed attendees to redeem
points instantly at the market. Adding a meaningful and
joyful touch, the Wenshan School of Special Education
Percussion Band from Taipei City and the Dance Club
of New Taipei City Special School were invited to deliver
ensemble and dance performances at Xinzhongshan Linear
Park and Jazz Square, creating heartwarming moments of

interaction and inclusion through live performances.
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2024 Shining Metro Light Village —
“Shining Moments of the Heart”

To celebrate the year-end festive season, Taipei
Metro hosted its annual light installation event under
the theme “Shining Moments of the Heart.” Four
vibrant display areas were decorated with dazzling
illuminations, including Xinzhongshan Linear Park,
Xinshuanglian Linear Park, Fuzhong Station, and
Daan Park Station. The displays featured whimsical
and oversized Metro mascot Jamie, adorable whales,
sparkling starlit archways, Christmas trees, and light
tunnels. The event also included a stylish black-and-
white Christmas tree co-created with private sector
partners Relove and Eslite, drawing crowds to enjoy
the lights and participate in festive campaigns such as
See the Lights—Get a Gift. In support of the Taipei City
Government’s Taipei Christmas Infinite Love initiative,
additional lighting installations were arranged along
Xinyi Road near Da’an Forest Park, including a towering
9-meter-tall gift-box Christmas tree, conveying warmth

and holiday cheer through glowing lights.
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© Partnering with FamilyMart for Exclusive
Offers

On December 23, 2024, Taipei Metro partnered with
FamilyMart to launch the Metro Holiday Bash, distributing
100,000 tea egg vouchers, 50,000 soft serve discount
coupons, and hosting an iPhone 16 giveaway. This initiative
expanded the use of Metro Points, fostering cross-sector
collaboration and encouraging members to integrate
metro riding with daily purchases. By leveraging Metro
Points for customer engagement, Taipei Metro is shaping a
lifestyle ecosystem filled with rewards and convenience.
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Taipei Metro 30" Anniversary Spring
Music Party

To celebrate its 30" anniversary, Taipei Metro hosted a
ticketed music concert at the Taipei Children's Amusement
Park on May 24 and 25, featuring performances by multiple
well-known artists and attracting nearly 10,000 attendees.
The event integrated themed markets, amusement
rides, and a carbon point redemption system for ticket
purchases, encouraging participation in carbon reduction
initiatives through the Go! Taipei Metro app. This not
only increased member engagement but also enhanced

brand image, highlighting Taipei Metro’s commitment to

sustainability and cultural promotion.
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Taipei Metro 30" Anniversary Forest
Celebration

On July 27, Taipei Metro held its 30" Anniversary
Celebration at the Sunlight Hall of Daan Park Station,
featuring live performances by popular singers Chih Siou
and Chuang Chuan-ying, among others. Distinguished
guests and mascots from domestic and international
rail operators joined the celebration. The event also
connected 30 metro stations, six business units, and
operations centers across the city for a synchronized
cake-cutting ceremony, symbolizing the solidarity and
cohesion of the organization. A member points-for-gifts

program at the event further enhanced interaction and

reinforced Taipei Metro’s brand identity.
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Taipei Metro 30" Anniversary Folk
Music Concert

On October 26, Taipei Metro partnered with New Taipei
Metro Corporation to co-host a folk music concert at the
plaza behind Tamsui Station. Ten legendary folk singers,
including Lee Chien-fu, performed timeless classics. The
event also welcomed charitable organizations to join in
the celebrations, underscoring Taipei Metro’s dedication
to community service. Ahead of the concert, a Folk Song
Travels in Tamsui event was held with check-ins and prize
giveaways. During the two-week campaign, nearly 1,000
Taipei Metro members participated enthusiastically,
encouraging the public to explore Tamsui by metro and light

rail while reliving the nostalgic golden era of folk music.
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Taipei Metro 30" Anniversary
Retrospective Exhibition

To commemorate thirty years of dedication and
achievement, Taipei Metro held two exhibitions at the
Zhongshan Metro Art Gallery. The first exhibition, A
Journey Through Time: Thirty Years of Taipei Metro,
presents how Taipei Metro has navigated numerous
operational challenges and emerged stronger over
the years. The second exhibition, Taipei Metro’s New
Guide to Urban Living, showcases the Company’s
recent expansion into recreational services, hotel
development, new business models, lifestyle ventures,
intelligent operations, and ESG-driven sustainable
living. Both exhibitions feature bilingual audio guides
and online access, inviting the public to reflect on the
close connection between the Metro and urban life,
and to witness the evolution of Taipei’s transit system
alongside the city’s growth.
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“Traversing 30 Years of Tracks
Towards the Capital of Hope” -
Urban Rail Development Exchange &
Appreciation Banquet

In 2024, Taipei Metro celebrates its 30th anniversary.
Thanks to the collective efforts of all its employees, it
has become one of Taiwan’s most iconic transportation
infrastructure projects. To express its gratitude, Taipei
Metro hosted the Urban Rail Development Exchange
& Appreciation Banquet, inviting senior officials and
key figures from domestic and international rail transit
organizations to deliver remarks. The event brought
together former and current heads of Taiwan’s metro
construction and operations agencies, representatives
of the Metro Taiwan Alliance, as well as delegates
from 17 international partners and counterparts from
countries including Singapore, Japan, Malaysia, and
South Korea. Taipei Metro will continue to foster
international exchange and collaboration, showcasing
Taipei to the world.
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Diverse Ticket Marketing

© Frequent Passenger Program

Implemented since February 2020, the Frequent
Passenger Program offers tiered cashback based on
the number of rides passengers take each month—the
more rides, the higher the cashback. In 2024, the total
cashback amounted to NT$1.142 billion, benefiting 253.11
million passengers.

© Megacity Pass

To reduce commuting costs, increase public transport
usage, improve road safety, and balance regional
development, Taipei Metro, in coordination with central
and local governments, replaced the original NT$1,280
monthly pass with the NT$1,200 Megacity Pass on
July 1, 2023. This pass now covers a broader area,
encompassing Keelung, Taipei, New Taipei, and Taoyuan,
and extends to additional transportation modes such
as Taiwan Railway, Taoyuan Metro, and intercity buses,
in addition to the Taipei Metro, New Taipei Metro, Light
Rail, city buses, and YouBike. By the end of 2024, Taipei
Metro had sold 4.68 million Megacity Passes, with a
satisfaction rate of 98.5%.
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© Taipei Metro Travel Pass

To enhance the appeal and value of the metro travel
passes, Taipei Metro continued its Enjoy Taipei
Anytime Taipei Metro Travel Pass marketing campaign.
Purchasers of One-day or 24/48/72-hour tickets
received discounts and offers at popular metro-
accessible attractions and merchants, such as the
National Palace Museum, National Taiwan Museum,
Maokong Gondola, Taipei Children's Amusement Park,
The Red House, as well as deals on dining, souvenirs, and
afternoon tea experiences. Additionally, to cater to the
diverse needs of different passenger groups, Taipei Metro
collaborated with other transport operators to offer joint
tickets like the Taipei Metro x China Airlines Metro-Airline
Combo Ticket, Taoyuan Airport MRT/Taipei Metro Joint
Ticket, and THSR T Holiday, offering travelers flexible and
value-added transportation options.
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To demonstrate its commitment to sustainable transformation,
Taipei Metro published its 2023 Sustainability Report in
2024 in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI) framework, disclosing the Company’s efforts and
achievements across ESG dimensions. Furthermore, in line
with the government’s 2050 net zero emissions goal, Taipei
Metro conducted its first organizational carbon inventory
and product carbon footprint assessment. The results were
published in the Sustainability Report and made available
through the Go! Taipei Metro app to guide the Taipei Metro’s
future carbon reduction pathways and encourage the public to

opt for low-carbon modes of transportation.

Taipei Metro has also actively promoted its ESG sustainability
philosophy. Internally, the Taipei Metro ESG Elementary
School introduced employees to environmental awareness
days and carbon reduction tips, while the Clean Living
Campaign encouraged staff to participate in carbon reduction
competitions and promotional raffles to deepen ESG awareness
across the organization. Externally, Taipei Metro aligned its
initiatives with its sustainability vision, “Go Greener, SHINE
Brighter!” by organizing exhibitions and carbon reduction
promotional events to encourage the public to embrace green
transportation and low-carbon practices in daily life. By rallying
collective participation, Taipei Metro strives to maximize
impact and share its experiences in carbon reduction, energy

efficiency, and ESG initiatives with fellow enterprises.
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Taipei Metro’s ongoing sustainability efforts have also received
widespread recognition. In 2024, TRTC was honored with the
Gold Award for SDG 7 (Affordable and Clean Energy), the Bronze
Award for SDG 11 (Sustainable Cities and Communities) at the
2024 TSAA Taiwan Sustainability Action Awards, and the Gold
Award at the ESG Transportation Sustainability Awards.

On March 25, Taipei Metro hosted the seminar on “Essential
Layouts for Corporate Sustainability Transformation from a
Global Perspective,” attended by representatives from over 90
partner companies, including Siemens, Industrial Technology
Research Institute, Aerospace Industrial Development Corporation,
Chunghwa Telecom, MIiTAC, and Otis Elevator Company (Taiwan).
The keynote speaker, Mo Tung-Li, Secretary General of BCSD
Taiwan, shared his insights on essential strategies for corporate
sustainability transformation and how current global economic
trends are shaping industrial development. The seminar
encouraged suppliers to align with government policies and global
sustainability trends in promoting ESG practices by offering safe
working environments, actively participating in social responsibility
activities, and committing to environmental protection and circular
economy measures to achieve mutual benefits and shared
prosperity with corporate partners. During the seminar, Taipei
Metro also recognized outstanding partners, presenting awards
in several categories: “Outstanding Environmental Sustainability
Cleaning Vendor,” “Outstanding Occupational Safety and Health
Vendor,” “Outstanding Domestic Spare Parts Development
Partner,” and “Cleaning Expert.” A total of 14 companies and 7

individual cleaning professionals were honored.
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Solar Photovoltaic Installation at
Depots

To respond to national energy policies and the Taipei City
Government's goal of building a low-carbon city, as well
as to revitalize Metro assets by providing renewable
energy, Taipei Metro adopted a rooftop leasing model to
install solar photovoltaic power generation equipment
at Beitou Depot. After completing the first solar power
plant in the Taipei metropolitan area at Beitou Depot,
similar installations were completed and leased out
at six additional depots: Tucheng, Luzhou, Xinzhuang,
Muzha, and Neihu. Beitou Depot is also undergoing the
second phase of solar photovoltaic system expansion.
Upon completion, the project is expected to generate
approximately 20.36 million kWh of electricity annually,
which is enough to supply power to 5,500 households
for one year while reducing carbon dioxide emissions
by over 9,650 tCO2e. These actions have allowed

us to advance towards our goal of "environmental

sustainability and green energy supply.”
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Energy-saving and Environmental
Protection Measures

Taipei Metro continues its implementation of energy-
saving measures, such as replacing traditional
fluorescent lights with LED fixtures at stations; upgrading
outdated and energy-intensive air conditioning
equipment; transitioning to more energy-efficient
machine-room-less elevators from hydraulic ones;
and replacing elevator cabin lighting with energy-
saving alternatives. These energy-saving management
measures resulted in total savings of approximately
7 million kWh of electricity in 2024, reducing carbon
emissions by about 3,316 tCO,e. This demonstrates
Taipei Metro's strong commitment to energy-saving and

environmental protection.

Beitou Depot E-bus Parking and
Shared Charging Facility

In response to the Taipei City Government’s policy
for the full electrification of public buses by 2030,
Taipei Metro conducted an assessment of available
space and power capacity at its depots to establish
charging infrastructure. Through coordination with
the Department of Transportation of the Taipei City
Government, and in collaboration with Danan Bus
Company, an electric bus parking and shared charging
facility is being developed at Beitou Depot, with
completion expected by 2025. The facility will offer 31
parking spaces for electric buses, including 22 charging
bays. This initiative not only revitalizes unused depot
space but also addresses the charging infrastructure
challenges faced by bus operators through shared
power resources, creating a win-win situation and

paving the way for a greener urban future.
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2024 Metro Alliance Greening
Together Tree Planting Event

On the eve of Arbor Day, Taipei Metro once again
hosted the 2024 Metro Alliance Greening Together tree
planting event. Held on March 9 at Beitou Depot, the
event brought together officials from the Taipei City
Department of Transportation, Department of Rapid
Transit Systems, New Taipei City Department of Rapid
Transit Systems, and the Transportation Bureau of the
Kaohsiung City Government, along with representatives
from New Taipei Metro, Taoyuan Metro, Taichung Metro,
and Kaohsiung Metro. Together, they planted evergreen
ash tree saplings, demonstrating a shared commitment
to environmental sustainability, ESG values, and the
joint vision of building a smart, low-carbon, efficient,
and sustainable urban transportation system.
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Metro Taipei Childcare Center

To foster a friendly workplace conducive to parental well-being,
Taipei Metro inaugurated the Metro Taipei Childcare Center,
the first public enterprise workplace childcare service center,
on the first floor of the Rapid Transit Administration Building,
ensuring employees can work with peace of mind. To ensure a
healthy and comfortable learning environment for both teachers
and students, the Center continues to enhance indoor air quality
by installing equipment such as air purifiers with sterilization
functions and energy recovery ventilators to improve overall air
circulation and cleanliness. In 2024, the Center was awarded the
Gold Label Certification by the Department of Environmental
Protection, Taipei City Government, and was personally presented
with a certificate of appreciation by the Mayor. Looking ahead,
Taipei Metro will continue upholding a spirit of excellence by

enhancing its workplace environment and investing further

resources into improving the Metro Taipei Childcare Center.
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Corporate Value Creation
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Advocating for Workplace Gender
Equality

Taipei Metro is dedicated to implementing gender
equality policies in line with the Convention on
the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination
Against Women (CEDAW) and the Gender Equality in
Employment Act. In addition to revising occupational
safety and health policies, the Company aims to
achieve a better work-life balance, foster a maternity-
friendly environment, and ensure a safe and respectful
workplace by reshaping corporate culture, adjusting
organizational structure, and optimizing compensation
systems. In addition, Taipei Metro established a Gender
Equality Task Force composed of external experts and
scholars. Both managers and staff undergo gender
awareness training to understand concepts such as
gender equality, sexual harassment prevention, and
fostering gender-friendly workplaces. Gender equality
awareness is regularly promoted to employees through
events, introductions of the LGBTIQ+ concepts, and
organizing seminars on preventing workplace bullying,
with the aim of enhancing employees’ awareness of
workplace safety. Taipei Metro will continue striving
to establish a workplace environment that is "equal,

humane, safe, and dignified."

Taipei Metro 30" Anniversary
Family Day

To express gratitude for the dedication and contributions
of all employees and partners over the past three
decades, Taipei Metro hosted a large-scale Family
Day celebration on April 26 and 27, featuring exclusive
evening access to the Taipei Children's Amusement Park.
The event offered Taipei Metro staff and their families
a chance to share in the Company’s achievements and
milestones. Mayor Chiang Wan-an and senior officials
from the Taipei City Government were also in attendance
to celebrate Taipei Metro’s 30-year journey and the joy of

its accomplishments.
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Taipei Metro’s first-ever group wedding ceremony took
place on November 30, 2024, in the Sunlight Hall of
Daan Park Station. Sixteen couples joined in matrimony,
celebrating their special moment together. The event,
themed “Train to Happiness, Journeying as One,”
integrated metro elements, symbolizing couples moving
forward in parallel akin to tracks on a railway. Deputy
Mayor Chang Wen-te officiated the ceremony alongside
Chairman Chao Shiao-lien and President Huang Ching-
shinn, who extended their blessings to the newlyweds.
The event also featured a lively jazz dance flash mob
and a Happiness Raffle, adding a vibrant and festive
touch to the wedding celebration. The ceremony not
only symbolized love and unity but also reflected Taipei
Metro’s commitment to fostering a friendly workplace

and building a happy enterprise culture.
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Beach Cleanup for a Greener Planet

Demonstrating its commitment to environmental
protection and action, Taipei Metro and its labor union
once again co-organized a beach cleanup in November.
A total of 131 employees and their family members
joined efforts at Zhongjiao Bay along the North Coast,
collecting litter from the shoreline. Through hands-on
participation, the initiative aimed to preserve the natural
beauty of the ocean and protect the environment for
future generations. More than 415 kilograms of trash
were collected, reaffirming Taipei Metro’s dedication

to sustainability through hands-on environmental

stewardship and collective action for the planet.
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Hualien Specialty Gifts and Agricultural
Products Exhibition

To support Hualien in its recovery from the April 3 earthquake,
Taipei Metro partnered with the Hualien County Government,
local business district organizations, and farmers’ associations
to host three sessions of the Post-Quake Revitalization—
Hualien Remains Beautiful! Hualien Specialty Gifts and
Agricultural Products Exhibition in the B1 concourse of Ximen
Station. The event promoted high-quality local souvenirs and
agricultural products from Hualien. The Magistrate of Hualien
County personally attended the exhibition to express gratitude
to all sectors and Taipei Metro for their strong support and

active participation in revitalizing Hualien’s economy.

Spreading Love and Care: A Series of
Community Engagement Initiatives

Through the Spreading Love and Care campaign, Taipei Metro
carried out initiatives under four key themes—“Joint Marketing
Cultural Co-
Prosperity,” and “Fulfilling Dreams”—embodying its core values

» o« » o«

of Agricultural Products,” "Walking Together,
of corporate social responsibility. In addition to delivering
meaningful transportation services, Taipei Metro aims to
be a source of warmth in the city, helping underprivileged

communities achieve greater happiness.
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Providing “safe, reliable, and friendly transportation services while pursuing
sustainable development” remains Taipei Metro’s unwavering mission. In the
future, Taipei Metro will continue to strengthen its core transportation operations
while actively advancing digital technology integration. These innovations will be
broadly applied across railway operations, commercial development, administrative
management, and maintenance services to enhance overall efficiency. At the same
time, the Company will continue to actively engage in domestic and international
industry exchanges to learn, absorb experiences and knowledge, generate new
corporate energy, showcase a diverse brand image, and offer passengers a

completely new experience.

In addition, Taipei Metro will keep exploring opportunities to revitalize available
station spaces and introducing unique retailers that cater to passenger needs. It
will also focus on enhancing the surrounding station environments to stimulate
regional development and transform Metro stations into convenient hubs that

enrich daily life.

With a steadfast commitment to sustainable operations, the Company will take
concrete actions to support ESG principles, guided by the goals of “Intelligence,
Resilience, and Sustainability.” Taipei Metro is actively engaged in energy
conservation, carbon reduction, green transportation, and sustainable development.
It also enthusiastically participates in environmental and public welfare initiatives,
fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities and working together to realize its

vision of “A world-class metro, a wonderful Taipei.”
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Milestones

01.26

03.02

03.28

04.26-04.27

05.01

05.28

06.24

13

O

RERMRILE BB IIZRROHE -
A signing ceremony is held for the Jiannan Rd. Metro Station Multi-purpose
Building Development Project.

TEREILAEEE B ERERRE » 4 BRERNEHELD 40 D
ESTREETS o

Taipei Metro successfully managed the dispersal of crowds attending the
Taipei Dome's first full capacity baseball game, dispersing nearly 40,000
spectators in approximately 40 minutes.

BIRE—EEEHEE

The first Metro Festival was held.

BoE A EIpLILE M 30 BF » IEAHHES TREHEE) ©
In commemoration of its 30" Anniversary, the TRTC expanded the scope of
its Employee Family Day activities.

RESLABEZAREREUEHE T2  #FEREL TN
AEEBERKEM o
Passengers can now purchase tickets and merchandise using a variety of

payment options, including credit cards, mobile payments, and stored value
cards, at all Metro station Information Counters.

RESITHNZEE M3 FEREBERERE BT,

The TRTC receives the 2024 Parenting Friendly Enterprise Award in the
Benchmark Enterprise category by the Taipei City Government Labor Bureau.

RERBILZ AR A IIERE T HE -
The groundbreaking ceremony was held for the Jiantan Metro Station Multi-
purpose Building Development Project.
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The TRTC held an Urban Rail Development Exchange & Appreciation Banquet,
gathering leaders and key figures from the domestic rail industry, along

with representatives from 17 international rail companies and partners from
Singapore, Japan, Malaysia, South Korea, ad more, in joint celebration.

BEWMABRIUBFERLES » RAZAMAR UM ABREF A
HEIP s 2B LIRAEERSIERESL ; S REMBHE K
JAMIE] #1545 > BE AR °

In honor of its 30" anniversary, the TRTC held a birthday event in Daan
Park Station's Sunshine Hall, joined by various domestic and international
railway IPs in celebration. All stations took part in a coordinated cake-cutting
ceremony over video call. Taipei Metro's new mascot JAMIE debuted and
made its first public appearance.

BESE KBRS ESE (2024 FEEKEITENR ) SDGO7 K
SDG11 HfEE o

TRTC is honored at the 2024 Taiwan Sustainability Action Awards (TSAA) held
by the Taiwan Institute for Sustainable Energy (TAISE), receiving the Gold
Award for SDG 07 and the Bronze Award for SDG 11.

BXRENRIRERES BEMKLEBRLES) °
The first Folk Song Concert was held (at the plaza behind Tamsui Metro
Station).

RIER UL E BIRAB TIZSRS T84S -

The groundbreaking ceremony was held for the Jiannan Rd. Metro Station
Multi-purpose Building Development Project.
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The TRTC's proposal for “Volume and Energy Leaps in Taipei Metro:
Revolutionizing Train Scheduling and Capacity Management” received an
Improvement Excellence Award in Taipei City Government's 2024 Innovative
Proposal Competition.

P

1.30 O EERRMKIIER30BF > BEXPHES TEEER (REAZHMA
ISP REE) ©

TRTC hosted its first-ever employee group wedding in Daan Park Station's
Sunshine Hall to celebrate its 30th anniversary.

1216 O REWMLEEE 10 BF

The Taipei Children's Amusement Park has been in operation for 10 years.

1228 O Wmﬂﬁb/}_mﬂaﬁ%* RE 22N BEESERNT) T $—
& TESG RBEHNER ) £ > [EENEFEMEILIRRIIEE o

TRTC’s "Energg Sustainability Enhancement Project” won the Gold Award
in the 1st ESG Transportation Sustainability Awards, hosted by The Global
Logistics & Commerce Council of Taiwan. This makes TRTC the first railway
company in Taiwan to receive such a prestigious honor.

12.31-01.01 O AILEEESHNEELEER 42/ \KEE » Wis [BEEER - AL
WBEEER OB > H R A RFBERR » BRIENERBFREET o B 2024
FP2ANHEFeRE2025F 1B 1HEF 6 BELRREEN
3IB3EBEAR

Provided 42-hour continuous service for the New Year’s Eve celebration,
supporting the Citg’s festivities with the campaign “Celebrate New Year’s with
the Green Line—and connect effortlessly via the Brown, Red, Orange, and
Blue!” Once again, the Taipei Metro successfully met the challenge posed by
the large volume of passengers on New Year's Eve. The system transported
3.13 million passengers between 06:00 on December 31, 2024 and 06:00 on
January 1, 2025.
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2024 International Rail Industry Partnership
Agreements (15 Agreements in 2024)

0117 O
0222 O
0424 O
0513 O

AR NI BERR AT E IR ~ SMRT Trains Ltd. Kz SBS Transit Ltd. » LIAREAA
AREBENS G1EETER ©
The TRTC signed a four-party Memorandum of Understanding with

Singapore's Land Transport Authority, SMRT Trains Ltd., and SBS Transit Ltd.
via video conference.

SHZEEE B QAN EPEBEZZERIFHE ©
Maokong Gondola and Beppu Ropeway established a friendship relationship.

HATRERMAEHERIRBRNRREHE » EHEENHEE
BETHEBINES SR FEE c 2024 F 5 B 13 HEAAZEZHXR
RIFHRE °

The TRTC signed a chinese version of friendship agreement with the lzukyu
Corporation in Taipei. The Maokong Gondola and Shimoda Ropeway, the
aerial lift systems operated by each party, also entered into a friendship
relationship. The TRTC signed a japanese version of friendship agreement
with the Izuhakone Railway in Japan on May. 13, 2024.

HATRREBERNSHERARZEAXREFHE » B 2BAIRIR
uh BB ESF UL TR B A4S 2 Ih ARG o 2024 FF 7 B 2 HE R ILBEP XK
FIHE ©

The TRTC signed a japanese version of friendship agreement with the Izuhakone
Railway in Japan. Xinbeitou Station and Shuzenji Station, operated by each party,
simultaneously entered into the sister relationship stations. The TRTC signed a
chinese version of friendship agreement with the Izuhakone Railway in Taipei on
Jul. 2, 2024.
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HEMNEEMA S AXEEZSPEHESMAN SN =S EERTHE
The TRTC signed a three-party friendship agreement with Japan's Enshu
Railway Co., Ltd. and Tenryu Hamanako Railroad Co., Ltd.

BAFT N 5= A VR /A B) Stellar Lifestyle B2 S EHE S » HLAIE
ERERIURG o

The TRTC signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Stellar Lifestyle of
Singapore, with the aim to jointly create new rail industry business models.

B ALPICO RBHEA SR EFEEMAN T = EERTFHE ©

The TRTC signed a three-party friendship agreement with Alpico Kotsu Co.,
Ltd. and Nagano Electric Railway Co., Ltd.

HERAEEMGT ST RERFRESIFERS -

The TRTC signed a Letter of Intent with Japan's Keisei Electric Railway Co., Ltd.

HEPARITHAEHRBRARBE XS ESE o

The TRTC signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Nippon Travel Agency
Co., Ltd.

EERTEREERF NS L RERGTWE

The TRTC signed a friendship agreement with Japan's Kintetsu Group
Holdings Co., Ltd..



09.10

09.13

09.20

10.25

11.04
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BEARRREERNERATQIENDATRBHNIRESIFETER

The TRTC signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Tobu Railway Co.,
Ltd.'s Taipei Branch.

2HE 3 EREMBNAS > EENEERZE KN SMRT S£EHE
E'/\ é'ﬂz'f%/p\fi °

The TRTC participated in the 3rd Metro Alliance Exchange Conference, where
a Memorandum of Understanding was jointly signed with domestic metro

companies and Singapore's SMRT Group.

B URREATERBIIDAE T8EEMREXRERNBEBLAE K2
GIFESER

The TRTC signed a Memorandum of Understanding with JRE Business
Development Taiwan, Inc. (JR-EAST Group).

SHZEABE R B H AR LSS ~ FURBCGEIE BB RIFHE ©
Maokong Gondola signed separate friendship agreements with Japan's Mt.
Nokogiri Ropeway and Mt. Tsubaka Cablecar and Ropeway.

B SEREHEMNEHRBERIFWNE °
The TRTC signed a friendship agreement with Nankai Electric Railway Co., Ltd.

18
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Key Statistical Data

SERERERER (2024.12.31)

System Information

RIKISERER ~ FALFRIELR -

HRERE SR AR AR B AR D 4R 2RH
Route Length Wenhu Line |Tamsui-Xinyi Line, Songshan- Xindian Line,| Full System
Zhonghe-Xinlu Line, and Bannan Line

Ei - N\
=B B2 N
Operational Network 252 105.9 1311 km
= AOFL )\
=AREL A
Elevated sections 220 1 331 K
THEE AEB
Ground level sections ) s s km
HNEL AE
Underground sections 32 853 88.5 K
EREE AE
Constructed Network 25. m.2 1369 km

BIKISEREAR ~ FALFRIELR -
ERILEN SRR FRFHR AR R iR R AR BRR

Number of Stations Wenhu Line |Tamsui-Xinyi Line, Songshan- Xindian Line,| Full System
Zhonghe-Xinlu Line, and Bannan Line

LB EE Y 3%
Total 2t o il stations
= AO0FL o
=ZREL 4
Elevated sections 2z 2 S stations
FEE 5 . . B
Ground level sections stations
R ES i
Underground sections 2 [E e stations




SRR

Wenhu Line

BIKIEERER ~ FALFIELR -

R AR R AR R AR

Tamsui-Xinyi Line, Songshan- Xindian

Key Statistical Data

Line, Zhonghe-Xinlu Line, and Bannan Line

>

Egal
. VAL256 | 370 301 321 341 371 381 -

Train model

| |
i . 25.5 50.5 22 36 6 5815 24 §.J
Number of trains trains
=5
SHIEBRRM . 4 4 | 6 6 6 6 6 =/
Number of carriages per train carriages
EBaE . 102 202 132 216 36 321 144 EFFE
Number of carriages carriages
y— I A A
E§J$I§EM§K 72 84 352 352 352 308 318 fiz
Seats per train seats
=5 = Ay} 2
ﬁﬂﬁﬁkﬁ%ﬁg (6 ).\/m ) 2 490 446 | 2,220 | 2,220 | 2,220 | 2,220 | 2,220 A
Passenger capacity per train (6 persons/m°) persons
e E
Hij(.“l 5 . 6% 6% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% %
Maximum gradient
=l szz N /m AN
B R . 33 | 33 200 | 200 200 | 200 | 200 @ AR
Minimum curvature radius m
EE st R YN=SWRINSS
Maximum designated speed 80 80 0 0 90 90 90 km/hour
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RIKISEAR ~ MRLFRELR

XtfiR Rl AR R iR AR X Efi
Wenhu Line | Tamsui-Xinyi Line, Songshan- Xindian Line, Full System Unit
Zhonghe-Xinlu Line, and Bannan Line
MR ) ; . i

Number of depots depots

o] NS

IR 13.31 19.9 133.21 AR
Total area hectares

MIKIEERMR ~ WMILFRIELR

{R)EE S SR FRFNFRE AR B AR E AR 2245 B
Affiliated Businesses | Wenhu Line | Tamsui-Xinyi Line, Songshan- Xindian Line, Full System Unit
Zhonghe-Xinlu Line, and Bannan Line
IREL i
Station storefronts 2 e e stores
B
Advertisements
BHILES B
Station advertisements =0 Ul el items
A =
ey . 2124 10,142 12,266 =
In-car advertisements items
A== =
5815 =
Platform TV e A s items
Gk
Parking Lots
e AL 1,086 8777 9,863 T
Scooter spaces spaces
= i
AR 1,512 2,493 4,005 &
Car spaces spaces
T
Metro malls
[hERRIEX 0 210 210 El
Number of shop spaces stores
£55AR
JEFHER 0] 9,788.41 9,788.41 square
Total shop area
meters




EIEEE (2024.1.1-2024.12.31)
Operating Statistics

StHER

Wenhu Line | Tamsui-Xinyi Line, Songshan- Xindian Line,

BIKEERAR ~ MLFIELR -
PRI EAR Rtk AR

Zhonghe-Xinlu Line, and Bannan Line

RIECERH
Operating times

EF
Full System

FHEER
Number of hours
per day

18(06:00-24:00)

NS

hours

| BB s

Train time statistics

(F5E,
Berthing time

25-60
25-60
seconds

—RR A4 20-35 #) » FEEEILA
35-50

General stations 20-35 sec.; major transit
stations 35-50 sec.

CARE )

minutes:seconds

Bm{TH
Single journey
duration

48 93 47

48 minutes
47 seconds

© %K - R 53 73 50
Tamsui — Xiangshan
53 min., 50 sec.

o i - K% 3593 05 %
Beitou — Daan
35 min., 05 sec.

® AL - /& 37 3 00
Songshan — Xindian
37 min., 00 sec.

oAl - BEARIB24 155
Songshan — Taipower Building
24 min., 15 sec.

o EMN -FEEA 365247
Luzhou — Nanshijiao
36 min., 24 sec.

® BEE - mFA 47 5 56 B
Huilong — Nanshijiao
47 min., 56 sec.

o FBREEEE - JAH 47 9 48 1
Taipei Nangang Exhibition Center —
Dingpu
47 min., 48 sec.

o FBRERE - Rk 39 ) 08
Taipei Nangang Exhibition Center —
Far Eastern Hospital
39 min., 08 sec.

CARE L

minutes:seconds

Key Statistical Data
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® 3K - R 107 73 40 7
Tamsui — Xiangshan
107 min., 40 sec.
o it - K% 70 5 10 #
Beitou — Daan
70 min., 10 sec.
© 3L - #/E 74 43 00 #
Songshan — Xindian
74 min., 00 sec.
® Al - BEAIZ 48 3 30 B
Songshan — Taipower Building
E1TE 97534 Fh | 48 min. 30 sec. 5.7
Retur.n journey 97 minutes | o BN - BIEE 72 5 48 F - minutes:seconds
duration 34 seconds Luzhou — Nanshijiao
72 min., 48 sec.
o iEFE - A 95 0 52 1)
Huilong — Nanshijiao
95 min., 52 sec.
o FBRELE - 183 95 7 36
Taipei Nangang Exhibition Center —Dingpu
95 min., 36 sec.
o FEERERE - iRER 78 516 7
Taipei Nangang Exhibition Center —
Far Eastern Hospital
78 min., 16 sec.
ImEGHTIR 90 # 150-495 b ) ﬂ‘
Turnaround time | 90 Seconds 150 to 495 seconds seconds
E8
Ridership
ZL‘?Q\‘ = —a
Eg“"“gi | 70,254,374 671,570,137 741,824,511 )\ a
Annual ridership trips
ATES et
Average daily 191,952 1,834,891 2,026,843 trins
ridership P
TEBESH
FIER e
Average 217922 1,967,360 2,185,282 trios
weekday daily P
ridership
(EI=ESE=!
Fi9iEE
“H
Average 135,981 1,549,397 1,685,378 AR
weekend and trips
holiday daily
ridership




SR
Wenhu
Line

RIKISEREAR ~ FALFRIELR -
R AR R R A AR

Tamsui-Xinyi Line, Songshan- Xindian Line,
Zhonghe-Xinlu Line, and Bannan Line

BRR
Full System

Key Statistical Data

BEREA
Train Usage
Total number of train 209,134 859,744 1,068,878 Runs
runs
IR /=t i
TRSHIR 571 2,349 2,920 i
Average daily runs Runs
48 /N AR
AL L\E 5,278,370 15,757,727 21,036,097 LEE R2
Total train kilometers train-km
RIFARTE K EE
Service Performance
2
FroResEE | 20040 4% 03% 58
2 minutes . = .
Average peak headway 4 minutes 03 seconds minutes:seconds
04 seconds
N j:: BIf | N 7))
Average off-peak 4 minutes . = .
6 minutes 18 seconds minutes:seconds
headway 22 seconds
1TEIRE RE /N
Speed 32.50 s ) km/hour
7&25:2?
e s 0 _ 0
Szl Beis 99.79% 99.48% %o
U R
o~ -+ 7 /\
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION (the “Company”)
as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity
and of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary material
accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and report of other auditors (please refer to the Other matter section), the
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with the Business Entity Accounting Law relating to the preparation of financial statements,
Regulation on Business Entity Accounting Handling, Enterprise Accounting Standards issued publicly by the
Accounting Research and Development Foundation, along with its interpretations.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Independent Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants of the Republic of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Based on our audits and report
of other auditors, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Other matter — Reference to the audit of other auditors

We did not audit the financial statements of an investment accounted for under the equity method which were
audited by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included
in respect of this associate, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. The balance of this investment
accounted for under the equity method amounted to NT$12,042 thousand, constituting 0.05% of the total
assets as at December 31, 2024, and the comprehensive income recognised from associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method amounted to NT$1,023 thousand, constituting 0.19% of the total
comprehensive income for the year then ended.

Other matter — Scope of the audit

The financial statements of TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION for the year ended December 31, 2023 were
examined by the Audit Department in Taipei. There are no differences from the audited amounts determined by
our audit.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of Business Entity Accounting Law relating to the preparation of financial statements,
Regulation on Business Entity Accounting Handing, Enterprise Accounting Standards issued publicly by the
Accounting Research and Development Foundation, along with its interpreetations, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Independent auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

7.50"3 ?«" 1/{.,«,0\

Tsai, Pei-Hua
For and on Behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

April 9, 2025

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and
jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of
China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries
and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and
independent auditors’ report are not intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting
principles or Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept
any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may
derive from the translation.
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DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

BALANCE SH EETS (Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars; the 2023

balances were examined by the Audit Department in Taipei)

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
ASSETS Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current Assets
Cash 6(1) ) 602,174 3 S 702,693 3
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current 6(2) 5,203,477 23 5,681,172 26
Financial assets at amortised cost - current 6(3) 4,019,938 18 3,220,000 15
Accounts receivable 58,329 - 62,376 -
Accounts receivable - related parties 7 370,699 2 667,860 3
Other receivables 72,013 - 67,608 -
Other receivables - related parties 7 52,731 - 68,869 -
Inventories 6(4) 2,340,847 1 2,385,520 m
Prepayments 910,045 4 677,400 3
Total current assets 13,630,253 61 13,533,498 61
Non-current assets
Financial assets at amortised cost - non current 6(3) 1,551,818 7 2,054,166 9
Investments accounted for under equity method 6(5) 483,965 2 471,605 2
Property, plant and equipment 6(6) 3,732,675 17 3,921,464 18
Investment property 6(7) 2,684,793 12 1,859,751 8
Intangible assets 24,872 - 36,140 -
Deferred income tax assets 6(19) 320,235 1 372,698 2
Other non-current assets 4,029 - 267 -
Total non-current assets 8,802,387 39 8,716,091 39
TOTAL ASSETS S 22,432,640 100 S 22,249,589 100

Continued
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DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

BALANCE SH EETS (Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as

otherwise indicated)

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
ASSETS Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current Liabilities
Notes payable S 81,383 1§ 184,851 1
Notes payable - related parties 7 11,484 - 14,487 -
Accounts payable 33,116 - 30,165 -
Accounts payable - related parties 7 15,804 - 156,530 1
Income tax payable 61,322 - 32,101 -
Other payables 6(8) 2,958,777 13 2,760,266 12
Other payables - related parties 7 1,618,669 7 1,845,484 8
Other current liabilities 6(9) and 7 1,365,280 6 1,260,751 6
Total current liabilities 6,145,835 27 6,284,635 28
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities 6(19) 1,024 - 1,023 -
Other non-current liabilities 6(10)(11) and7 2,660,658 12 2,876,935 13
Total non-current liabilities 2,661,682 12 2,877948 13
Total liabilities 8,807,517 39 9,162,583 41
Equity
Share capital 6(12)
Common shares 10,000,000 45 10,000,000 45
Capital surplus 6(13)
Capital surplus 10,474 - 8,630 -
Retained earnings 6(14)
Appropriated retained earnings 1,749,841 8 1,723,909 8
Unappropriated retained earnings 1,865,263 6 1,354,948 6
Other equity
Unrealised gain or loss on financial assets at fair value ( 455) i ( 481) i

through other comprehensive income

Total equity 13,625,123 61 13,087,006 59

Significant contingent liabilities and unrecognised

contract commitments
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 22,432,640 100 $22,249,589 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars; the 2023

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME amounts were examined by the Audit Department in Taipei)

For the years ended December 31

2024 2023
Iltems Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT
Operating revenues 6(15) and 7
Fare revenues S 17622,344 85 S 16,356,163 83
Other operating revenues 2,992,263 15 3,391,248 17
Total operating revenues 20,614,607 100 19,747,41 E
Operating costs 6(4) and 7 -
Transportation costs ( 17,464,965) (85 (16,706,009) (85)
Other operating costs ( 141,904) (7 ( 1,691,258) ( 8)
Total operating costs (1 18,876,869) (192) ( 18397267) @
Gross profit 1,737,738 8 1,350,144 7
Operating expenses 6(6)(11)(18) and 7 o
Selling expenses ( 297406) 1 ( 418,469) ( 2)
Operating expenses ( 959,377) (5 ( 885568) ( 5
General and administrative expenses ( 715,278) (4 ( 630735 ( 3
Other operating expenses ( 95,529) - 83076) (1)
Total operating expenses ( 2,067,590) (10) ( 2017848) m
Operating loss (329852 ( 20 ( 667,704) J

Non-operating income and expenses

Other income 6(3)(16)and 7 602,928 3 653,124 4
Other gains (losses) 6(2)(17) 72,961 1 57,913 -
Finance costs ( 307) - 287) -
Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures accounted for under equity 6(5) 60,349 - 54,588 -
method
Total non-operating income and expenses 735,931 4 765,338 4
Profit before income tax 406,079 2 97,634 -
Income tax expense 6(19) ( 50,359) - 11,524) -
Profit for the year S 355720 2 3 86,110 -
Continued



< LILHEEAT 2024 £

Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation Annual Report —

REMBER1I2E1H1HBE 12 B 31H

B e T

NI EE M2 F£E (BHEETEH)
' E B 3E & % % £ % %
Hithiz 81838 (FF58)
AENEFHREZIER
MERMNEZBEEH () S 225823 1 S 126983 1
R AR R EECH .
BHMER S BmAREMAERE 2 PSR 7~ () ( 45,165) - 25396) -
Hitiz &8558 $ 180,553 1S 101,751 1
UG AEeEE S 536273 3 s w878l 1

BINMBRRMES A BRR —ED » FHESH -



M RRE G AR E
Appendix

STATEMENTS OF YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

COMPREHENS'VE INCOME (Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, -

except as otherwise indicated)

For the years ended December 31

2024 2023
Iltems Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Defined benefit plan remeasurement 6(11) S 225823 1 S 126983 1

Share of other comprehensive income (loss)
fof subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 6(5) ( 105) - 64 -
accounted for under equity method

Income tax relating to the components of

other comprehensive income 6(19) ( 45165) - 25:396) -
Other comprehensive income for the year S 180,553 1 S 101,751 1
Total comprehensive income for the year S 536,273 3 S 187,861 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Share capital

Retained Earnings

Other equity interest

Appropriated
retained
earnings

Capital
surplus

Unrealized
gain or
loss on

available-
for-sale

financial
assets

Unappropriated
retained
earnings

Unrealised
gain or loss on
financial assets

at fair value

through other
comprehensive
income

For the year ended December
31, 2023 (examined by the Audit
Department in Taipei)

Balance at January 1, 2023
Effect of retrospective
application

Balance at January 1, 2023
after adjustment
Appropriation of 2022
earnings

Legal reserve
Net income for 2023

Change in associates and joint
ventures accounted for under
equity method

Other comprehensive income
(loss) for the year

Balance at December 31, 2023

For the year ended December

31,2024

Balance at January 1, 2024

Appropriation of 2023
earnings

Legal reserve

Net income for 2024

Change in associates and joint
ventures accounted for under
equity method

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at December 31, 2024

6(14)

6(14)

$10000000 $ 6837 $1679950 $ 1139585 $ 70980 S - $ 12897352
- - - 70,980 ( 70,980) - -
10,000,000 6837 1679950 1,210,565 - - 12897352
- - 43959 ( 43,959) - - -
- - - 86,110 - - 86,110
- 1793 - - - - 1793
- - - 102,232 - 481) 101,751
$10000000 $ 8630 $ 1723809 $ 1354948 $ - 481) $ 13,087,006
$ 10,000,000 $ 8630 $ 1723909 $ 1,354,948 - (S 481) $ 13,087,006
- - 25932 ( 25,932) - - -
- - - 355,720 - - 355,720
- 1,844 - - - - 1,844
- - - 180,527 - 26 180,553
$ 10,000,000 $ 10474 $ 1749841 $ 1865263 S - (S 455) S 13625123

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31

Notes 2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax S 406,079 S 97,634
Adjustments

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Deposit on provisions ( 19,523) 13,121
ST T Gy wowm ( sase)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6(17) 462 1,803
;l;a;ﬁ%i:lggsﬁnancial assets at fair value through B(2)(17) ( 80547) ( 64,659)
Depreciation 6(6)(18) 468,315 465,582
Amortisation 6(18) 14,922 15,254
Interest income 6(16) ( 84,181) ( 70,469)
Interest expense 307 287
Donated assets recorded as other income 6(20) ( 3,957) ( 3,289)
Amortisation of premium on bonds payable 409 1,595
Deferred revenue transferred to revenue ( 313) ( 313)

Changes in assets and liabilities relating to operating

activities
Accounts receivable 4,047 ( 20,228)
Accounts receivable - related parties 297161 413,930
Other receivables ( 178) ( 9,456)
Other receivables - related parties 16,138 ( 4,277)
Inventories 44,673 ( 49,138)
Prepayments ( 232,645) ( 271,078)
Notes payable ( 103,468) 66,672
Notes payable - related parties ( 3,003) 1,499
Accounts payable 2,951 ( 31,418)
Accounts payable - related parties ( 140,726) 122,521
Other payables 198,51 66,810
Other payables - related parties ( 226,815) 1,289,781
Other current liabilities 106,124 426,853
Other non-current liabilities ( 8,599) 134,611

Continued
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31

Notes 2024 2023
Cash inflow generated from operations 595,795 2,549,042
Receipt of interest 79,954 59,315
Payment of interest ( 307) ( 287)
Payment of income tax ( 13,829) ( 12,101)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 661,613 2,595,969
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value thorugh profit S 7272,000) (S 7796,000)
or loss - current T e
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value 7830242 7042 467
through profit or loss - current T T
Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost - non-current ( 297999) ( 530,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortised cost ) 200,490
- current !
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(20) ( 277626) ( 314,810)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 8
Acquisition of intangible assets ( 3,654) ( 3,926)
Acquisition of investment property in construction 6(7) ( 825,042) ( 1,057,749)
ncrease) decrease in other non-current assets 3 ,
| d h 3,762 18,608
Receipt of dividends 49,728 26,941
Net cash flows used in investing activities ( 80013) ( 2,413,971)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in guarantee deposits received (shown as “other 3798 38414
non-current liabilities”) ’ ’
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 37,981 38414
Net (decrease) increase in cash ( 100,519) 220,412
Cash at beginning of year 702,693 482,281
Cash at end of year S 602174 S 702,693

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

(The 2023 balances were examined by the Audit Department in Taipei)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANISATION

Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation (“the Company”) was incorporated in the Republic of China (“ROC”) as a
company limited by shares on July 27, 1994. The major business activities of the Company include the provision
of public rapid transit services, public rapid transit business consulting service, sales of general merchandise,
advertising, and the leasing of signboards and parking lots. Major operating properties of the Company are
leased from the Taipei City Government. The Taipei City Government is the Company’ s major stockholder which
owns 73.75% of outstanding shares.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORISATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PROCEDURE
FOR AUTHORISATION

The financial statements have been approved for issuance by the Board of Directors on April 9, 2025.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

None.

4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all reporting periods, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Compliance statement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Business Entity
Accounting Law relating to the preparation of financial statements, Regulation on Business Entity
Accounting Handling, and the Statements of Financial Accounting Standards and related interpretations
issued by the Accounting Research and Development Foundation.

(2) Basis of preparation

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, the financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.
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(3) Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company is determined by the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates. The financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the Company’s
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

A. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rate at
the dates of the transactions.

B. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising upon translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or
loss.

C. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through profit or loss are translated
at closing rate at the balance sheet date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at cost are translated using the
historical exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

D. All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within
‘other gains and losses’.
(4) Criteria for classifying assets and liabilities as current or non-current items
A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets:

(1) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised or consumed, or are intended
to be sold within the normal operating cycle;

(2) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
(3) Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(4) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to be
exchanged or used to pay off liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.
B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities:

(1) Liabilities arising from operating activities that are expected to be paid off within the normal
operating cycle;

(2) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;
(3) Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(4) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

Otherwise, they are classified as non-current liabilities.

(5) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. Related
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss. These financial assets are subsequently remeasured and
stated at fair value, and any gain or loss of these financial assets are recognised in profit or loss.
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(6) Financial assets at amortised cost
A. Financial assets at amortised cost are those that meet all of the following criteria:

(a) The financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

(b) The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at amortised cost are recognised and
derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. Financial assets at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest method. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is impaired or derecognised.

D. The Company’s time deposits which do not fall under cash equivalents are those with a short maturity
period and are measured at initial investment amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(7) Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are loans that are created by the entity by selling goods or providing services to
customers and are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment loss. Interest amortised using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss. However, short-term accounts receivable without
bearing interest are measured at transaction amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(8) Impairment of financial assets

A. The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’ ) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

B. The criteria that the Company uses to determine whether there is objective evidence of an impairment
loss is as follows:

(a) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;
(b) A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

(c) For economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granted the borrower a
concession that a lender would not otherwise consider;

(d) It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with the individual financial asset in the group, including adverse changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group or national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group;

(f) Information about significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technology,
market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates, and indicates that the cost of the
investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered;
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C. When the Company assesses that there has been objective evidence of impairment loss of financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including accounts receivable, other receivables and guarantee deposits
paid), the amount of impairment loss is determined as follows according to the category of financial
assets:

The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, and recognised by reducing the carrying amount of the asset through the use of an
impairment allowance account in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the use of an impairment
allowance account to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost
that would have been at the date of reversal had the impairment loss not been recognised previously and
recognised in profit or loss.

(9) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been settled.

(10) Lease - lessor

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to lessee are
classified as operating leases. Lease income from an operating lease (net of any incentives given to the
lessee) is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(11) Inventories

Inventories include merchandise for sale and consumable and non-consumable materials and fuel for
internal use. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the moving average-method. The item by item approach is used in applying the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Allowance for obsolescence is provided for slow-moving items of consumable, non-
consumable materials and fuel for internal use.

(12) Investments accounted for under equity method - Associates

A. Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but no control or joint
control. In general, the Company directly or indirectly holds 20% or more of the voting power of the
investee.

B. Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost. The Company’s share of its associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other comprehensive income are recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, respectively. Where the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Company does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

C. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from profit or loss or other comprehensive income
and such changes do not affect the Company’s ownership percentage of the associate, the Company
recognises change in ownership interest of the associate in ‘capital surplus’ in proportion to its
ownership.
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D. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated to the extent
of the Company’s interest in the associates. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Companuy.

E. When the Company ceases to account for its interest by using the equity method, all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are accounted for on the same
basis as would be required and all capital surplus relating to the associate are reclassified to profit or
loss.

(13) Property, plant and equipment

A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during the
construction period are capitalised.

B. In case of replacement of one part of the property, plant and equipment, the new part is capitalised to the
extent that it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company,
and the carrying amount of the part replaced is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss when incurred.

C. Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost model subsequently. Property, plant and equipment
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Each part of an item
of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item
is depreciated separately, unless it is impracticable. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings and structures 30 years
Machinery and equipment 2 ~ 40 years
Transportation equipment 2 ~ 30 years
Leasehold assets 2 ~ 55 years

Other equipmen 2 ~ 20 years

(14) Lease - lessee

A. Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under an operating lease less any incentives received
from the lessor are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

B. Pursuant to Interpretation (109) 367 and (111) 068 issued by the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation, for rent concessions obtained due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, that reduce
only lease payments when all specified conditions are met and recognised the gain from changes in
lease payments arising from the rent concessions by decreasing rent expense, do not need to follow the
regulation of Enterprise Accounting Standard No. 20 “Lease” paragraph 15.

(15) Investment property

An investment property is stated initially at its cost and measured subsequently using the cost model.
Accounting for investment property is the same as the accounting for property, plant and equipment.
Except for land, investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.
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(16) Intangible assets
A. Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment.

B. Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 4 years.

(17) Impairment of non-financial assets

A. The Company assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where there
is an indication that they are impaired. The impairment loss on revalued assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of amount of unrealised revaluation surplus; excess is recognised in
profit or loss, if any.

B. Where the recoverable amount increases in subsequent period, the book value of the asset is adjusted
to its recoverable amount. The carrying amount after reversal should not exceed its book value (less
depreciation or amortisation amount) that would have been if the impairment had not been recognised.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss, but gain on reversal of impairment loss on
revalued assets is recognised in profit or loss to the extent of impairment loss initially recognised in profit
or loss; excess is recognised in other comprehensive income as unrealised revaluation surplus of the
asset.

(18) Notes and accounts payable

Notes and accounts payable from purchasing raw materials, goods or services on credit are initially
recognised at fair value less any transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest amortised using the effective interest method is recognised in profit
or loss. However, short-term accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured at
transaction amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(19) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

(20) Employee benefits
A. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid and are recognised as expenses in the period in which the employees render service.

B. Pension
(A) Defined contribution plan

For defined contribution plan, the contributions are recognised as pension expenses when they are
due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent of a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments.
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(B) Defined benefit plan

a. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount of pension
benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the Company in current
period or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance sheets in respect of defined benefit
pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date
less the fair value of plan assets. The net defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows using interest rates
of government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability.

b. Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plan are recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.

c. Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
) . . ) . K .
C. Employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors remuneration

Employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are recognised as expenses and
liabilities, provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and those
amounts can be reliably estimated.

(21) Income tax

A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or items
recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or
equity.

B. The current income tax liabilities are calculated based on the tax rate enacted at the balance sheet
date. An additional tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax
expense in the year the shareholders resolve to retain the earnings.

C. Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the balance sheet. However,
the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled.

D. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. At each balance sheet date,
unrecognised and recognised deferred tax assets are reassessed.

E. A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carryforward of unused tax credits resulting from research
and development expenditures to the extent that it is possible that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be utilised.
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(22) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(23) Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
the Company’s shareholders. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities.

(24) Revenue recognition

Fare revenues are recognised when service has been provided. Under the Company’s frequent passenger
program, the Company grants a cashback ratio to the customer when the transaction is successful, and the
customer can receive the cashback during a certain period in the future. The fair value of the consideration
received or receivable arising from initially providing the service is allocated to provided services and
discount. Such cashback will be automatically deposited to the electronic wallet when it is swiped at a
Metro gate for the first time during the validity period. Rental revenues from Mass Rapid Transit (“MRT")
station shops, underground shopping malls, and base for mobile phone facilities are accounted for in
accordance with the terms of the leases. Costs and expenses are recognised as incurred. In accordance
with the financial statements examined by the ADTC, revenues and costs (recorded as “Agency income” and
“Agency expenses’) related to the Maokong Gondola, the Taipei Arena, the Taipei Children’s Amusement
Park and Taipei MRT Circular line Phase | (Circular ) commissioned by the Taipei City Government are
expressed at gross amount.

(25) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value only when there is reasonable assurance that the
Company will comply with conditions attached to the grants and the grants will be received. Government
grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognises expenses for the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. If government
grants are given on condition that it will be used for purchasing or other methods to acquire non-current
assets, the grants will be recognised in profit of loss during the estimated useful life of associated assets
on a reasonable and systematic basis.

. CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to use judgement in adopting accounting
policies. However, the Company does not have to make critical assumptions and estimates concerning future
events based on existing conditions.

6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS
(1) Cash
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Cash on hand S 166,260 S 250,862
Checking accounts and demand deposits 435,914 451,831
S 602,174 S 702,693
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(2) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Current items:
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair valuethrough
profit or loss
Beneficiary certificates S 5,119,000 S 5,584,000
Valuation adjustment 84,477 97172
$ 5203477 $ 5,681,172

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
listed below:

For the year ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Beneficiary certificates S 80,547 $ 64,659

B. The fair value of the open-end funds invested by the Company is based on the net value at the balance
sheet date.

C. The Company has not pledged any financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(3) Financial assets at amortised cost

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Current items:
Corporate bonds S 500,000 $ -
Financial bonds 299,938 -
Time deposits of more than three months to one year 3,220,000 3,220,000
S 4,019,938 $ 3,220,000
Non-current items:
Corporate bonds S 852,068 S 1,154,533
Financial bonds 549,750 749,633
Financial asset beneficiary certificates 150,000 150,000
S 1,551,818 $ 2,054,166

A. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognised interest income (shown as
“other income”) in the amount of $81,470 and $68,656, respectively.

B. The Company has no financial assets at amortised cost pledged to others.
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(4) Inventories

Materials and fuel

Merchandise

Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence

MBHRREGHEIERRE

Details of operating costs for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Transportation costs
Agency cost
Costs of investment property

Other operating costs

(5) Investments accounted for under equity method

Associates

Appendix
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
S 2363778 S 2,444,901
196 187
2,363,974 2,445,088
( 23127)  ( 59,568)
S 2340847 S 2,385,520
For the years ended December 31,
2024 2023
S 17464965 S 16,706,009
911,178 1,209,831
54,766 48,922
445,960 432,505
S 18876,869 S 18,397,267
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
S 483965 S 471,605

A. The carrying amount, nature and extent of the Company’s material associates are as follows:

Book value

Percentage of ownership

December 31,2023 December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Investments December 31, 2024
EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd. S 340,534
Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd. 12,042
EasyCard Corporation 131,389

$ 483,965

S 334,547 27.49%
11,798 20%
125,260 10.93%

$ 471,605

27.49%
20%

1%
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B. The Company’s interests in material associates” share of profit (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2024 2023
Share of Share of other Share of Share of other
profit comprehensive profit comprehensive
Investments or loss income or loss income

EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd. S 33744 (S 5) S 31,625 (S 100)
Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd. 1,023 - 866 -
EasyCard Corporation 25,582 ( 54) 22,097 264
S 60,349 (S 105) $ 54,588 S 164

The investment income of Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd. was recognised based on the investee’s financial
statements audited by other independent auditors.

(6) Property, plant and equipment

Machinery
and
equipment

Buildings

Transportation Leasehold Other Construction

equipment improvements equipment in progress Total

and structures

At January 1, 2024
Cost S 40680 S 1706733 $ 6818578 $ 3354714 S 332557 S 36056 $12,289,324

Accumulated

depreciation ( 25757) ( 1362,097) ( 3901776) ( 2,834,363) ( 243,867 - ( 8367860)

S 14923 § 344,642 $2916802 S 520351 $ 88690 S 36056 S 3921464

2024

At January 1 S 14923 $ 344642 S 2916802 S 520351 S 88690 S 36056 S 3921464
Additions - 129,419 14,543 33,852 18,763 85,006 281,583
Disposals - 275) ( 123) - 64) - 462)
Transfers - 548 - 8,017 ( 458) ( 9,702) ( 1,595)
Depreciation charge ( 1,312) ( 92,925) ( 278,358) ( 78,051) ( 17,669) - 468,315)
At December 31 S 13611 S 381409 S 2652864 $ 484169 S 89262 S 1M,360 $ 3,732,675

At December 31, 2024

Cost $ 40680 S 1792583 S 6807701 $3396583 $ 343963 S M360 S 12,492,870

Accumulated

depreciation ( 27089) ( 14M174) ( 4154837) ( 2912,414) ( 254701 - ( 8760,95)

S 13611 $ 381409 $ 2652864 S 484169 S 89262 S 1,360 $ 3732675

At January 1, 2023

Cost S 40680 $ 1751530 $ 6593224 $ 3,290,571 S 323251 § 145715 S 12,144,971

Accumulated

depreciation ( 24,445) ( 1405189) ( 3661840) ( 2746161) ( 236,238) - ( 8073873)

S 16235 S 346341 S 2931384 S 544410 $ 87013 $ 145715 $ 4,071,098
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Buildings Magt;icr'lery Transp_vortation . Leasehold O_ther C_onstruction Total
and structures equipment equipment improvements equipment in progress

2023

At January 1 S 16235 $ 346341 $ 2931384 S 544410 S 87013 S 145715 S 4,071,098
Additions - 94,395 147145 3701 18,202 21,346 318,099
Disposals - 1,540) ( 157) - 114) - 1,811)
Transfers - 570 103,173 27132 ( 210) ( 131,005) ( 340)
Depreciation charge  ( 1,312) ( 95124) ( 264,743) ( 88,202) ( 16,201) - ( 485,582)
At December 31 S 14923 S 344p42 S 2916802 S 520,351 S 88690 S 36056 S 3,921,464

At December 31, 2023

Cost S 40680 S 1706739 S 6818578 $ 3354714 $ 332557 $ 36056 $12,289,324

Accumulated

depreciation ( 25757) ( 1362097) ( 3901776) ( 2,834,363) ( 243,867 - ( 8367,860)

S 14923 S 344B42 S 2916802 S 520,351 § 88690 S 36056 S 3921464

A. No borrowing costs were capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment.

B. The Company has no property, plant and equipment pledged as collateral.

(7) Investment property

Buildings
2024 2023

At January 1

Cost S 1,859,751 S 802,002
Opening net book amount as at January 1 S 1859751 S 802,002
Additions 825,042 1,057,749
Closing net book amount as at December 31 S 2,684,793 S 1,859,751
At December 31

Cost S 2,684,793 S 1,859,751

A. The Company’s investment property is a project to revitalize the space in rapid transit facilities and construct
multiple services. The relevant facilities are currently under construction and are expected to be completed in 1-4
years.

B. No borrowing costs were capitalised as part of investment property.

C. The Company has no investment property pledged as collateral.
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(8) Other payables
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Salary and bonus payable S 1,864,891 S 1,745,809
Repairs and maintenance payable 324,588 274,598
Utilities payable 237,290 187,380
Business tax payable 93,100 116,448
Others 438,908 436,031
S 2,958,777 S 2,760,266
(9) Other current liabilities
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Accrued receipts under custody S 1,052,750 S 907,675
Unearned receipts 223,225 257,379
Cashback from frequent passenger program 89,305 95,697
S 1,365,280 S 1,260,751

(10) Other non-current liabilities

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Accrued pension liabilities S 1,553,496 S 1,798,842
Guarantee deposits received 897,691 859,710
Temporary credit 207,513 216,112
Deferred subsidy revenue 1,958 2,271

S 2,660,658 S 2,876,935

(11) Pension plan

A. Defined benefit plan

(a) The Company has a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor Standards Law, covering all

regular employees’ service years prior to the enforcement of the Labor Pension Act on July 1, 2005 and
service years thereafter of employee who chose to continue to be subject to the pension mechanism under
the Law. Under the defined benefit plan, two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years
and one unit for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are
based on the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months
prior to retirement. In 2024 and 2023, the Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 14.41% and
14.91% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of Taiwan,
respectively, the trustee, under the name of the independent retirement found committee. Also, the Company
would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor pension reserve account by December 31, every year.
If the account balance is insufficient to pay the pension calculated by the aforementioned method to the
employees expected to qualify for retirement in the following year, the Company will make contribution for
the deficit by next March.
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(b) Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets
Net defined benefit liabilities

(shown as "other non-current liabilities")

(c) Changes in net defined benefit liabilities

2024
Balance at January 1
Current service cost

Interest cost (income)

Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in interest income or
expense)

Experience adjustments

Pension fund contribution
Paid pension

Balance at December 31

2023
Balance at January 1
Current service cost

Interest cost (income)

Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in interest income or
expense)

Experience adjustments

Pension fund contribution
Paid pension

Balance at December 31

MBHRREGHEIERRE

Appendix
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
S 6,899,229 6,622,473
( 5,345,733) 4,823,631)
S 1,553,496 1,798,842
Present value of
defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit obligation
6,622,473 (S 4,823,631) S 1,798,842
293,368 - 293,368
82,781 ( 62,296) 20,485
6,998,622 ( 4,885,927) 2,112,695
- 415753) ( 415,753)
189,930 - 189,930
189,830 ( 415753)  ( 225,823)
- 333,376) ( 333,376)
289,323) 289,323 -
6,899,229 (S 5,345,733) 1,553,496
Present value of
defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit obligation
6,607275 (S 4,694,571) S 1,912,704
311,446 - 311,446
82,591 ( 60,868) 21,723
7001312 ( 4,755,439) 2,245,873
- 18,876)  ( 18,876)
108,107) - 108,107)
108,107)  ( 18,876)  ( 126,983)
- 320,048) ( 320,048)
270,732) 270,732 -
6,622,473 (S 4,823,631) S 1,798,842

176



BIGHEEAT) 2024 F1R
Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation Annual Report

177

(4) FRBIZEERMNEBAFAEERTEE » AHEBRTRZETFEREERFEMESRTEE
EEZ AR EERBER » KFH TRRESWSRERERWESNMF2EE (BIFRERS
2R > REBEWIN T « EESAAEZ EmB s R ERNIIMBEZEF CERS )
IHERSTEE - ERERBI AR IRNESEESETEE - B2 ER » HEFR
ooz &BWE - MEERIREMET - FERFRANRABREZWm - EEFE @ BIEE
BRIz ERABREMTE - AARBRERSHEZET Y EFRERE » S AKER S 5128
$£19 KF 142 BREBBAZNEERAANBEZDE - RENBERR2 F12 B3 BENZEE
MEEZANEBE > FABNLAGZEFEZH TRUESERRS °

(5) BRENREZFERRERNT:

N3 EE nwEE
riR= 1.50% 1.25%
PRSI ES 2.50% 1.49%
EEN3 112 FEHPRRIFECE 2 BRRGERAEFESRBERRK ©

HxBz T 2RERREMTEL HEENEFREDNUT

IR RARFREIG N
H#70 0.25% B 0.25% B0 1% B 1%
N3F 12831 H
HEEENEBREZZE (s 87190) S 89,561 S 365724 (S 335,318)
m2F128 318
HEEENEBRREZZE (s 95381) S 98106 S 404,548 (S 368,749)

FHZHREDHFEEREMRRTENBER TONMBE—RREFFE - BB LFZRRNE
FARIEREFN - MRESMEREASABEEESRRFRREARMHRABNI A -

(6) AABINRE N4 FEFEI LN TRKRGTE ZIREE 4 $333376 ©
(7) BERBEN3IF12 831 HIE » mBASIEZ INEFHEFEREA59 F o

C(MERE4F7R1HE  AREMKIERTFTRASIRG ) » STAREREZRNITE > BAR

AEFEZET - AREIMETEEER S TIRIERE ) PAEZS TIRNEFIEED - SR
B2 6w i@ TRREEFHRBETEARE » ETRREZXARETEAZEREER AR
B 2 SER A RSN — RIS TURE ©



MR RE G TR E
Appendix

(d) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s defined benefit pension
plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual investment and utilisation plan and the “Regulations for
Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilisation of the Labor Retirement Fund” (Article 6: The scope
of utilisation for the Fund includes deposit in domestic or foreign financial institutions, investment
in domestic or foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private placement equity securities, investment
in domestic or foreign real estate securitization products, etc.). With regard to the utilisation of the
Fund, its minimum earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial statements shall be no
less than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits with the
interest rates offered by local banks. If the earnings is less than aforementioned rates, government
shall make payment for the deficit after being authorized by the Regulator. The Company has no right
to participate in managing and operating that Fund and therefore, the Company is unable to disclose
the classification of plan assets fair value in accordance with |AS 19 paragraph 142. The composition
of fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 is given in the Annual Labor Retirement
Fund Utilisation Report announced by the government.

(e) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2024 2023

Discount rate 1.50% 1.25%

Future salary increase rate 2.50% 1.49%

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, assumptions regarding future mortality experience are
set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience in Taiwan.

Analysis of the effect of the present value of defined benefit obligation due from the changes of main
actuarial assumptions used is as follows:

Discount rate Future salary increase rate
Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25% Increase 1% Decrease 1%
December 31, 2024
Effect on the present value of
defined benefit obligation (s 87190) S 89,561 $ 365,724 (S 335,318)
December 31, 2023
Effect on the present value of S 95381) S 98106 S 404548 (S 368749)

defined benefit obligation

The sensitivity analysis above is based on one assumption which changed while the other conditions
remain unchanged. In practice, more than one assumption may change all at once. The method utilised in
sensitivity analysis and the method utilised in calculating net pension liability on the balance sheet are

the same.

(f) The provision for the retirement plan is expected to be $333,376 for the year ending December 37,
2025.

(g) As of December 31, 2024, the weighted average duration of the retirement plan was 5.9 years.
B. Defined contribution plan

(a) Effective July 1, 2005, the Company established a defined contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”)
under the Labor Pension Act, covering all regular employees with R.0.C. nationality. Under the New Plan,
the Company contributes monthly an amount based on 6% of the employees’ monthly salaries and
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wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits
accrued are portable upon termination of employment.

(b) The net pension cost recognised under the defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 amounted to $180,729 and $173,555, respectively.

(12) Share capital

As of December 31, 2024, the Company’s authorised and paid-in capital was $10,000,000, consisting of
1,000,000 thousand shares of ordinary share, with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share. All proceeds from
shares issued have been collected.

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s ordinary shares outstanding at the
beginning and end of year was 1,000,000 thousand shares for both years.

(13) Capital surplus

Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of par value
on issuance of common shares and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to issue new
stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the Company has no
accumulated deficit. However, capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated deficit unless the
legal reserve is insufficient.

(14) Retained earnings

A. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current year’s earnings, if any, shall first be used to
offset prior years’ operating losses, then 10% of the remaining amount shall be set aside as legal reserve
and set aside related special reserve. The remainder, if any, to be retained or to be appropriated shall be
resolved by the shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting.

B. Except for covering accumulated deficit or issuing new stocks or distributing cash to shareholders in
proportion to their share ownership, the legal reserve shall not be used for any other purpose. The use of
legal reserve for the issuance of stocks or distribution of cash to shareholders in proportion to their share
ownership is permitted, provided that the distribution of the reserve is limited to the portion in excess of
25% of the Company’s paid-in capital.

C. The distributions of retained earnings for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 as resolved at
the shareholders’ meeting on June 21, 2024 and June 26, 2023, respectively, are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2023 2022

Legal reserve appropriated S 25932 S 43,959

D. As of April 9, 2025, the distribution of retained earnings for the year ended December 31, 2024 has not
yet been resolved by the Board of Directors.
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(15) Operating revenue

Fare income
Agency income
Government grant revenues

Miscellanceous operating income

(16) Other income

Leasehold income
Compensation income
Interest income

Others

(17) Other gains (losses)

Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net currency exchange gain (loss)

Others

Note: Please refer to Note 10(3).

(18) Expenses by nature

Depreciation charges on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation charges on intangible assets

Employee benefit expenses
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For the years ended December 31,
2024 2023
17622,344 S 16,356,163
975,513 1,303,233
M3 1,713
2,015,637 2,086,302
20,614607 S 19,74741
For the years ended December 31,
2024 2023
436,879 S 499,095
30,925 31,630
84,181 70,469
50,943 51,930
602928 S 653124
For the years ended December 31,
2024 2023
80,547 S 64,659
462) ( 1,803)
253  ( 2,627)
7377) | 2,316)
72961 S 57913
For the years ended December 31,
2024 2023
468,315 S 465,582
14,922 15,254
7,688,843 7,356,757
8,172,080 S 7,837,593
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A. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, a ratio of profit of the current year distributable, after

covering accumulated losses, shall be distributed as employees’ compensation. The ratio shall not
be lower than 0.1% and shall not be higher than 7%. Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration will be
accrued based on the Part-Time Payment Standards for Concurrently Serving Military, Civil and Teaching
Personnel and (90) Jiao-Lu-Zi Letter No. 047317 of Ministry of Transportation Communications.

. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, employees’ compensation was accrued at $30,898
and $7,666, respectively; while directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration was accrued at $1,606 and
$1,464, respectively. The aforementioned amount was recognised in salary expenses. The employees’
compensation for 2023 as resolved by the Board of Directors on May 24, 2024 was $7,371, and the
difference with the amount recognised in the 2023 financial statements was ($295) which had been

adjusted in the profit or loss for 2024.

(19) Income tax
A. Income tax expense

(a) Components of income tax expense:

For the years ended December 31,

2024 2023
Current income tax on profits for the year 73,907 16,874

Tax effect of permanent differences 28,205) 18,621)

Additional tax on unappropriated earnings 11,669 19,781

Prior year income tax overestimation 14,321) 9,163)
Total current income tax 43,050 8,871
Deferred income tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 7,309 2,653
Total deferred income tax 7,309 2,653
Income tax expense 50,359 11,524
(b) The income tax charge relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
2024 2023
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 45,165) 25,396)
B. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit
For the years ended December 31,
2024 2023
l’f:tﬁilji:l?;ic:alizsed on profit before income tax and 81,216 19,527
Expenses disallowed by tax regulation - 12
Tax exempt income by tax regulation 28,205) 18,633)
Prior year income tax overestimation 14,321) 9,163)
Additional tax on unappropriated earnings 1,669 19,781
50,359 11,524
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C. Amounts of deferred income tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences are as follows:
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
— Deferred income tax assets:
Temporary differences
Unrealised exchange loss S - S n
Accrued pension liabilities 315,609 360,774
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 4,626 11,913
320,235 372,698
— Deferred income tax liabilities:
Temporary differences
Unrealised exchange gain ( ) -
Bargain purchase gain ( 1,013)  ( 1,013)
( 1024) ( 1,013)
S 319211 S 371,685

D. Details of the amount the Company is entitled as investment tax credit and unrecognised deferred
income tax assets are as follows:

December 31, 2024

Unrecognised
Qualifying items Unused tax credits deferred income tax assets Expiry year

Research and

development expenditure 3160 S 3160 2026

December 31, 2023

Unrecognised
Qualifying items Unused tax credits deferred income tax assets Expiry year

Research and

development expenditure S 6.215 S 6.215 2025

E. The Company’s income tax returns through 2022 have been approved by the Tax Authority.

(20) Supplemental cash flow information

Investing activities with partial cash payments:

For the years ended December 31,

2024 2023
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment S 281,583 S 318,099
Less: Donated assets (Note) ( 3957) ( 3,289)
Cash paid during the year S 277626 S 314,810

Note: This is recorded as "other income".
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Names and relationship of related parties

Names of related parties

Taipei City Government (TCG)

Ministry of Transportation Communication (MOTC)
New Taipei City Government (NTCG)

EasyCard Investment Holding Co., Ltd. (Note 1)
EasyCard Corporation (Note 1)

Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd. (MTCS) (Note 1)
Metropolitan Transport Corporation (MTC) (Note 2)
New Taipei Metro Corporation (Note 2)

Taiwan High Speed Rail Corporation (Note 2)

State-owned Taiwan Railway Corporation, Ltd.
(Note 2)

Note 1: Associates. Please refer to Note 6(5).

Note 2: Other related parties.
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Relationship

Majority shareholder of the Company for 73.75%

Shareholder of the Company for 17.14%

Shareholder of the Company for 8.75%

Investee accounted for under the equity method of the Company
Investee accounted for under the equity method of the Company
Investee accounted for under the equity method of the Company
Investee of TCG

Investee of NTCG

Investee of MOTC

Investee of MOTC

(2) Summary of significant transactions and balances with related parties

A. Other operating revenues and other income

Agency income
TCG (refer to (a))
NTCG (refer to (b))
Electronic ticket service and lease revenue, etc.
TCG
NTCG
Associates (refer to (c))
Other income
Other related parties (refer to (d))

Associates (refer to (d))

For the years ended December 31,

2024 2023

S 975513 S 989,288
- 313,945

13,304 6,529

98 161

73,850 70,649

9,305 104,054

1,165 3,385

S 1073235 S 1,488,011

(a) TCG entered into a management contract with the Company and appointed the Company to operate

the Maokong Gondola, Taipei Arena and Taipei Children’s Amusement Park. Under the contract, if the
total operating revenue exceeds the actual total operating expenditures (excluding the earnings for
payment to TCG according to the contract), 20% of the excess shall be granted as a bonus to the
Company for management efficiency after deducting income tax calculated based on current year

income tax rate, and the remaining amount shall be returned to TCG. Losses, if any, shall be reimbursed

to the Company by TCG.
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(b) TCG entered into a management contract agreed by NTCG with the Company and appointed the
Company to operate the Taipei MRT Circular line Phase | (Circular ). Under the contract, if the amount of
total operating revenue exceeds the actual total operating expenditures, the excess less operating fees
and income tax calculated based on current year income tax rate shall be remitted to TCG. Losses plus
operating expenses, if any, shall be reimbursed to the Company by NTCG. Business tax shall be levied
on operating expenses, deficit offset and earnings return if NTCG and the Company have an obligation
to pay business tax. The Company has transferred the operation and management rights of Circular | to
NTCG on May 23, 2023.

(c) The Company signed an “EasyCard Stored Value Card Services Agreement” with associates. Pursuant
to the agreement, revenues and expenses are classified according to their nature and are subject to
settlement and remittance on either a daily or monthly basis.

(d) This represents the income generated by the Company as the Company was engaged by NTCG and
MTCS to provide additional human resources support and technical services for the operation of Circular 1.

B. Other operating costs and operating expenses

For the years ended December 31,

2024 2023

Agency expenses (shown as "other operating costs")

TCG S 178 S 905,312

NTCG - 304,519
Handling charges for EasyCard (shown as "other operating costs"
and "operating expenses")

Associates 96,262 98,542

$ 1007440 S 1,308,373

Please refer to Note 7(2)A for agency expenses and handling charges for EasyCard.

C. Receivables from related parties

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Accounts receivable
TCG S 221735 $ 289,223
NTCG 93159 241,751
Associates 55,782 111,080
Other related parties 23 25,806
370,699 667,860

Other receivables

TCG 43151 62,013
NTCG 3735 950
Associates 5,552 5,906
Other related parties 293 -
52,731 68,869
S 423430 S 736,729
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(a) The Company was engaged to handle certain business activities (such as subsidies for tickets for all
pass, senior, charity and escort, etc.) for the Department of Transportation, TCG, Department of Social
Welfare, TCG, Department of Education, TCG, Department of Transportation, NTCG, and Department
of Social Welfare, NTCG. Therefore, there are accounts receivable arising from the aforementioned
arrangements and receivables and operating-differential subsidy to agency business arising from the
transaction described in Note 7(2) A.

(b) Other receivables pertain to receivables arising from the arrangements by the Department of
Education, TCG, Department of Rapid Transit Systems, TCG, Department of Finance, TCG, Taipei City
Public Transportation Office, Taipei City Market Administration Office and Department of Rapid Transit
Systems, NTCG etc.

D. Payables to related parties

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Notes payable

Associates (Note a) S n484 S 14,487
Accounts payable

Other related parties (Note b) 4,981 126,904
Associates (Note a) 10,823 29,626
15,804 156,530

Other payables
TCG (Note b) 1,600,745 1,828,852
Associates (Note a) 17924 16,632
1,618,669 1,845,484
S 1645957 S 2,016,501

Note a: These are payables described in Note 7(2)B.
Note b: These are payables described in Note 7(2)A, B, and E.

E. Rental expenses (shown as "transportation costs" )

For the years ended December 31,

2024 2023

TCG S 5232,303 S 5,451,337

The Company entered into an agreement with TCG to lease properties of TMRTS in August 2011. The lease
term is from January 2011 to December 2015. The lease term has been renewed up to December 31, 2026
starting from 2016.

Starting from 2020, the rental is calculated based on the assessed replacement appropriation, 15%
of replacement appropriation and injection of self-liquidating appropriation, which are remitted to the
replacement fund account of Mass Rapid Transit Bureau, TCG. The Company experienced a decrease in
passenger traffic volume due to the impact of the COVID19 pandemic from 2020 to 2023. Consequently,
on April 21, 2023, the Company signed and negotiated with TCG to adjust the fixed rental as specified in
the original leasing agreement on properties of Taipei Metropolitan Rapid Transit Systems based on the
Company’s operating conditions and financial position. On April 19, 2024, the TCG approved the fixed rental
amounts for the years ending December 31, 2024 and 2025, which were determined to be $3,750,000 and
$4,390,000, respectively.
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F. Receipts under custody (shown as "other current liabilities" )

Receipts under custody
TCG

Associates

BRI EGSHERRE

The receipts under custody pertain to the payable for agent appointment described in Note 7(2)C and

payable for all pass tickets.

G. Temporary credit (shown as "other non-current liabilities" )

Temporary credit
TCG (Note a)
NTCG (Note a)
Associates (Note b)

Other related parties (Note c)

Note a: Please refer to Note 7(2)C (b) for description.
Note b: Please refer to Note 7(2)A (c) for description.
Note c: Please refer to Note 7(2)A (b) for description.

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

59,328 S 55,249
1 1
137,609 147,435
- 140
196,938 S 202,825

8. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNISED CONTRACT

COMMITMENTS

(1) As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had unused letters of credit in the amount of $369,065

and $1,945, respectively, for the purchase of materials and equipment.

(2) For the details of operating lease transactions, please refer to Note 7(2)E.

9. SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

None.

Appendix
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
987,002 S 845,248
2,429 2177
989,431 S 847425
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